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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021
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PR EET (BEET)
Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_Z-_—F=A=1—HILFEZE2F#£E
* Revenue o U3 HK$422.5 million 1225 BER T
* Profit before income tax o BRFTB B ANAF] HK$12.6 million 126 EEBT
« Shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2021 HRIE_—F=ZA=+—HRRES HK$461.2 million 4612 BEBT
* Basic earnings per share o BREAEF| HK1.79 cents 1.79 784
2021 2020
:g:—ﬁi — 7 —% E
Revenue (HK$'000) Wi (F#87T) 422,454 510,436
Operating profit (HK$'000) BERR (:F}%T_I:) 16,741 22,148
Profit before income tax (HK$'000) BRFT18 J’F}EHUI | (FH&T) 12,595 16,389
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000) BRRELEF :F}%T_E) 10,769 11,326
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREARG *' (GBAL) 1.79 1.89
Interim dividend per share declared and paid (HK cents) 2 SRR {35 R EIRE GBL) 0.5 1.0
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) EESRAHRE GBI 0.5 0.5
Net asset value (HK$’000) EEFE(TET) 461,232 450,177
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Chairman’s Statement FEHR&EE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2021.

This year is challenging as a result of the impact of the
implementation of global pandemic restriction that has continued
disruption to the global economy; and also, of the geopolitical
tensions between the Peoples’ Republic of China (the PRC) and the
United States of America (the US) (and its western allies); yet we
have managed to maintain business continuity during this period.
We could not alleviate impacts from the adverse business
environment if not because of our staff’s unfailing support and hard
work. The Government subsidies and rent concessions from
landlords also timely offered kind help during this challenging
period.

With the gradual but slow rollout of mass coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) vaccination programmes worldwide, we feel that we
could see the light at the end of the tunnel at last. Still, the
emergence of mutated variants of SARS-CoV-2 has raised the
concern of the next wave of a global pandemic that would dampen
the global economic recovery. We believe that consumption
sentiment will improve once the pandemic gets controlled. Despite
our realistic optimism about the global pandemic, we believe the
pace of recovery is uneven and slow due to the unpredictable
periodic emergence of new variants of SARS-CoV-2; containment
measures across borders would be imposed and lifted from time to
time to cope with such new pandemic.

The Hong Kong Government has forecasted, the real gross
domestic product (the “GDP”) of Hong Kong for 2021 is expected
to grow 3.5%-5.5% with varying performance among different
sectors despite it has to confront challenges on multiple fronts such
as the disruption of the economy caused by the COVID-19
pandemic; and the seemingly intensified tensions between the US
(and its western allies) and the PRC has reached the most acute
levels since the countries normalised diplomatic relations more
than four decades ago.

Recently, the Hong Kong Government, in support of the Central
Government’s 18 February 2019 promulgation of Outline
Development plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area (GBA), has adopted a policy of integrating the economic
activity with GBA by encouraging and facilitating different sectors
of the community to take advantage of this new development
opportunity for Hong Kong business. Accordingly, we will assess
the business environment and business opportunities in GBA
closely.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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We have continued to stay vigilant to market fluctuations as the US
is still dominated by concern over whether and when the Federal
Reserve will start to tighten the money supply, and the PRC
economy is just in the course of upgrading and transformation. We
will maintain a disciplined approach in operation in light of the
rapidly changing environment. Our flexibility will continue to
facilitate the optimal operation in changing business conditions in
order to control cost pressures. The current and quick ratios were
2.0 (2020: 2.4) and 1.2 (2020: 1.5) respectively. We shall continue
to closely observe market trends, capitalise on our strengths, and
adjust our strategies accordingly.

Going forward, we will develop new strategies to cope with the
highly uncertain business environment. We will continue to make
use of competitive advantage to capture more business
opportunities in Hong Kong and vicinity areas. In addition, we
expect that the Government would increase the supply of housing
units due to its efforts trying to increase land supply. Nevertheless,
we will cautiously assess the impact on our purchase cost from
external factors such as geopolitical tensions, currency fluctuations
due to fiscal and monetary policy of major economies and supply-
chain pressures. Meanwhile, we acquired a warehouse property
during the year to internalise operation costs as part of our
continuing efforts in cost control management.

The management would like to thank you for your support and
trust and also express our appreciation for the loyalty and efforts of
our dedicated staff. Their support and contributions have been
indispensable for the Group’s past development; and its prosperity
for years to come.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

29 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &85

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing, wholesale,
retail and installation of architectural builders’ hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and an account of the Group’s key relationships with
its employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Annual Report 2021.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
of the Annual Report 2021. Save as disclosed herein, during the
year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has complied with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.

During the year, the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) continued to
challenge economies across the world and anti-epidemic measures
have become the key of recovery. In Hong Kong, reliefs from the
Government and private sectors such as landlords were essential to
the gradual, despite uneven, recovery in recent months. The
demand for residential flats remained robust while new home
completions slowed with an upward trend of mid-sized housing.

The Group acquired a warehouse property at HK$68.5 million as
its self-owned warehouse in order to, among others, secure storage
space of goods and improve operation efficiency. Full details of
which are set out in the Company’s circular dated 24 August 2020.
The transaction was completed on 9 October 2020.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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REVENUE REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group's total turnover was
HK$422.5 million, representing a decrease of 17.2% as compared

with the previous year.

Revenue by business segment

RERT - FHARE
REA

Architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom
collections and others

Kitchen collection and furniture B EHERZR M

Profitability by business segment

RELT  HARE
REA

Architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom
collections and others

Kitchen collection and furniture B EHE K&
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BE_ER-_-SZ-A=1+-HLFE T5ELE

RERITE D 2 W
Revenue from external customers As a percentage of sales (%)
HHEFE RS HEEFEB DL (%)
31 March 31 March
=ZA=t+—H =ZA=+-H
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020
—E--F SEDER 28 -—F--F%F -T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000 (%)
BT TET
322,280 389,393 17.2) 76.3 76.3
100,174 121,043 17.2) 23.7 23.7
422,454 510,436 17.2) 100.0 100.0
RERITE S ZBFIBEN
Reportable segment gross profit Gross profit margin (%)
AERZIBER EFZE (%)
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020
B CZTCEF 28y —E--§ C"—T-EZH
HK$’000 HK$'000 (%)
FET TET
115,154 172,119 (33.1) 35.7 44.2
43,431 34,611 25.5 43.4 28.6
158,585 206,730 (23.3) 37.5 40.5

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R

11

N (54 B
S 2



Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &85

REVENUE REVIEW (conT'D)

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment decreased by 17.2% to HK$322.3
million (2020: HK$389.4 million) as compared to the previous
year. The market was more inclined to products of plain features
which lowered our product margin ratio. During the year, we
supplied for projects such as 21 Borrett Road, The Henley,
Montego Bay and Mount Anderson.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
decreased by 17.2% to HK$100.2 million (2020: HK$121.0
million) as compared to the previous year. A general improvement
in project site progress accelerated our revenue recognition.
During the year, we supplied for projects such as Southland.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$158.6
million (2020: HK$206.7 million), representing a decrease of
23.3% from the previous year. The overall gross profit margin
decreased to 37.5% from 40.5% as a result of the lowered gross
profit ratio from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment.

The Group's operating profit was HK$16.7 million (2020: HK$22.1
million), representing a decrease of 24.4% from the prior year. The
amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs decreased
by 19.1% to HK$149.0 million (2020: HK$184.1 million) mainly
due to rental relief from landlords, employment subsidies from the
Government and cost control in staffing and distribution.
Government subsidies received by the Group during the year
totalled HK$8.0 million (2020: nil).

Uy %5 [ B8 (@)

EERLS FARBREMSBREEEFE TR
172%ZE323HEBL(ZE-FF 13894088
L) c MEFMERRETT FENER » EBRE T HM
NERERNZ - FE R &MAE21 Borrett Road *
The Henley * FEER =R ZESHEARMER °

EEZBEREMD BREBEFRD 17.2%Z100.2
BEBL(ZE-EF 1210888 c-HEIR
Mt TEEEEBRSMREBRRER - REAFE
BMASREEERMER

AEBZEREEFNAIBEBBT(ZE-2F !
206.7BHEBBT) BEFERD233%  HRESESR
& FAREREMOIFEESBEEFE > BEEF
ZH40.5% TEE37.5% °

AEBRERNE167TBEBT(ZE -85 :
IHBERL) BEFERD24.4% c THHEZES
HEABAD19.1%Z149.0B BB T(ZE-FF :
1841 BBEX) DNETEHREFTHASER - BF
WIEHURETIRDHEBAREHIES - FR - KE
BUEHWBRFEEHSOEEBRT (=224 :
/) o



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.0 (2020: 2.4) and 1.2 (2020: 1.5),
respectively. During the year, we refinanced an expiring term loan
to strengthen liquidity and flexibility. In addition, the acquisition of
warehouse property was partially funded by a new mortgage loan.
The loans entered into during the year totalled HK$47.1 million.
Cash and cash equivalents approximated HK$103.0 million as at
31 March 2021 (2020: HK$83.4 million).

Inventories slightly decreased to HK$142.5 million (2020:
HK$144.9 million). The trade, retention and other receivables
decreased to HK$99.0 million (2020: HK$160.0 million), while the
trade and other payables slightly increased to HK$36.0 million
(2020: HK$34.5 million).

As at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is 7.4%. (2020: 1.1%). The interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group increased to HK$66.6 million (2020:
HK$10.7 million) as at 31 March 2021.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2021, performance bonds of approximately HK$37.6
million (2020: HK$31.7 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The coronavirus pandemic has now reached almost every country
in the world since it started in January 2020. With the slow rolling
out of the COVID-19 vaccination globally with some countries yet
to start mass vaccination campaign, coupled with people’s
hesitation, especially in Asia, to accept the vaccines, it would
prolong the pandemic-related economic recovery.

In addition, the ever emerging of ever-changing multiple highly
infectious variants of mutated coronavirus (alpha, beta, gamma and
delta) have quickly become the dominant form of the virus around
the world. The recent vaccines’ efficacy against these ever-
changing coronaviruses continues to cast doubt on any optimistic
view of lifting the anti-pandemic border restrictive measures in the
leading jurisdictions in July this year. Asia-Pacific is now
experiencing a renewed surge in infections, with some countries
have reported record increases in daily COVID-19 cases. There is
no certainty as to when Hong Kong will be able to re-open the
borders for business and tourism any time soon as Hong Kong is
one of the slowest progress of getting people vaccinated in Asia.
Hong Kong has still a long road ahead to a full economic recovery.

According to the Government’s publication, Hong Kong's gross
domestic product (GDP) resumed growth of 7.9% in real terms on
a year-on-year basis in the first quarter of 2021. With the stimulus
effect of rolling out the Government’s HKD5,000 consumption
voucher programme in August, it is expected that the real GDP
growth for 2021 is between 3.5% to 5.5%, while the
unemployment rate may remain relatively high at about 6% this
year.

Hong Kong is caught in the middle of a political storm between
China and the US (and its western allies) as Hong Kong has been a
conduit between East and West for trade and economic activities.
It will remain an uncertain key political risk factor to business
environment that make any medium- and long-term investment
decision difficult.

We expect unsettling currency fluctuations due to geopolitical
tensions, pandemic-related stimulus measures and corresponding
changes in major economies’ fiscal and monetary policy. We have
kept a close eye on foreign exchange risk exposure to control
purchase cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &85

FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

In Hong Kong, the residential property market is expected to
remain stable to modest increases in the near term given low-
interest rates and relatively strong demand. The Government'’s
determination in raising land supply might help citizens
accommodate more quickly in the long term. The upward trend of
building mid-sized homes shows signs of improvement in living
quality. We will continue to grasp the opportunity with reputable
developers in providing quality products. The retail industry is
expected to remain challenging due to weak consumer sentiment
especially in luxury sectors. The impact of the COVID-19
pandemic and geopolitical situations on the Hong Kong residential
market has yet to be assessed.

We have been cautiously monitoring external factors in order to
manage their impact on our operations. Effects from COVID-19 on
supply chain strain such as raw material upsurges and limited
logistics availability will likely to continue due to varying
pandemic landscape globally. We will closely monitor and swiftly
adjust our strategies accordingly.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Directors’ Report E2®R&

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 159 to 160.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 96 to 97.

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 28
and 33(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of HK0.5 cent
per share for the six months ended 30 September 2020 (for the six
months ended 30 September 2019: HK1 cent per share), totalling
HK$3,003,000 (for the six months ended 30 September 2019:
HK$6,006,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 8 September 2021, a
final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share for the year ended 31 March
2021 (for the year ended 31 March 2020: HKO.5 cent per share)
(the “Final Dividend”), totalling HK$3,003,000 (for the year ended
31 March 2020: HK$3,003,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed to members, whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in the
Cayman Islands or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the
“Register of Members”) as at the close of business on 16 September
2021. The payment will be made on 13 October 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

(@) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 3 September 2021 to 8
September 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 2 September 2021.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for
the Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 15 September 2021 to 16 September
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Final
Dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Abacus Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 September 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2021,
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$64,101,000 (2020: HK$49,483,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Law (2020 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution shall be paid to
shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company indirectly held full interest in
an office property for investment purpose. The property is located
at 19/F, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The property is held on long lease. Further details
of the properties held for investment purposes are set out in the
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2021 are
set out in the note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$30,130 (2020: HK$27,600).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 64, is the Chairman of the Company.
He is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a
brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 70, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

7\

Up and forward

Bx
AEEARBEAREAPZESMT

BOTES
HEELE
A ELEE
AHELE
BliEHm Tk
AR L

BYFHITES
BELE
BERELE
BEREEL

RUBRFEAR AP RFEREZBERRER
HIEME FAEREALCEANBARNESENES
HEBEREBER  UEPRAKEAHER -

EENRGREEAEZEE

HTES

BEFOERLLE  NTHE - BARBER - WARLQF
ETEtEMBLAZES - HEEREEMBES
FHERBA=TFER REBLEXREEERRE
BEEEEETF BEERTARNESHEEH
MBLEEZRR  ARRREFEHMBLEEZES
RAQAFRESHEEHEREECEN

AHELEE L5 ARERAPKE  R=F—=
FRAZT-BRZEREFRRHTESREIERE -
REFEERBVEE  YNBEY MM - HERME
FREEEEERBIAHELELER - WELER
ESEIRANENERA RPN ESHLERHNE
TEZER  RADARESHEEREREEZ
RH e

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R

N (54 B
S 2

21



22

Directors’ Report EZ#H %

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coONT'D)

Executive Directors (cont’d)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 62, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over
30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists
in the strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a
cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 53, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is a director of one subsidiary of the
Company. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU graduated
from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist College) in
1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 41, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’'s Degree of
Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company; and
a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 72, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-
executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a
director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 76, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China, an
Honorary Fellow of HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education and the chairman of Asian Construction Management
Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

Senior management
Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 64, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU possesses over 30 years of experience in the building
materials industry and is responsible for project related sales and
marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 46, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic will retire at the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. WONG
Wah, Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and Dr. LUK Wang Kwong
are Independent Non-executive Directors and were appointed for
a fixed term of one year.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 September 2010. The
Share Option Scheme expired on 8 September 2015. The Company
has not operated any share option schemes during the year ended
31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021, there
was no outstanding share option of the Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or requiring the Company to enter into
any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN EERYUEXRRAFAEBBEAZRS & 38,
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS &4 2 B AR

THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected BRIHEBERS | —HAEEN  XARNESRE
Transactions”, no other transaction, arrangement or contract thatis FEZBEEAFMEEARRAMBE R RARERARER
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the FH-FTREFAEEXBBEAMRAFERARA
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in  FE&RBHEEER2EMEMRS - ZHRELN
which a Director of the Company and the Director’s connected P EESHEEETSE AEE -

party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted during or at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR BEROIESFARHE
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the REREMEFEBRFER > AAF - EWE AR HHEAM
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a HESEZEBETLEFNRH  BREALDIEERE
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief BTBABBEREzZEBRARTN\BRNTF L)
executives of the company (including their spouses and children ZEBARREEELEREMBBEERORES
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the WEBESRE -

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its

specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, short positions, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERBETBRAERAQANEME
fiABEE 2RO RERRODRES 2
BER /KA

RZIZBZ-—FZA=1+—-H A RAREERES
THAEBRMEZBHBEALRA AT REEEEE
(EEREBSRPEMRPIEXVER) 2R - XA -
BARORESZTHEBCREZSZRMERMEXVE
BRSO BAMEARAREBHERZMERAT
(TBER ) 2 B RAR - RERARQAARE
EERMERGIEI2RAFESTM2EER K
B HERBLETRAMBET AR LETRTAES
ETREZRZ2BETA(REFH ) STHAER
RERBR Az EERKRNT

Directors’ interests EEER
Equity Percentage
Personal Corporate derivatives of share
Director interest interest (share options) Total  capital issued
ER{TETA HERITRAE
EE BARERE AFER (R ) it ZESHL
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) WRE L (M) - 37,197,294 - 37,197,294 6.19%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) AFEEE (MIEE2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) ST e (FIEE3) - 43,659,542 - 43,659,542 7.27%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) HUEGEEE (R 2) — 108,302,488 — 108,302,488 18.03%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun Bl EE - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic =HESE - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BB - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong EREELT - - - - _
Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way  BiEE1: ZEA QR R4 5 H Fast Way Management Limited

Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the BAE - BARERERBRZHEA

beneficiaries.

MizE2 @ ZEARDQERDER A Universal Star Group Limited 1
CHIFELE  WERLERBEZRENERS
Ao

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family
are the beneficiaries.

gl ot

MizE3 © Z %A 2 R R 13 % 2 B New Happy Times Limited 35
B -BHEEAECEBREIEERERAZHEA « KK

BARAKRRAEEESEE -

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times
Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (coNT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2021, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (not being Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Personal
Name of shareholder interest
BREREHE AR
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited -
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note 4) LIM Mee Hwa Z + (FffzE4) 4,501,650
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note 4)  YEO Seng Chong %t 4 (Ff{zE 4) 500,000

Note 4: Ms. Lim owns 4,501,650 Shares directly in her own name and her husband
Mr. Yeo owns 500,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, in
aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management Pte
Ltd (“YCMPL”) and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in the
Company held by each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, comprised of direct
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled
corporation, is 30,455,550. Each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed to
be beneficially held.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2021.

FERR

REZBZ-F=ZA=+—-B  UTAL(AFEST
RRBERBTHAE)RAR AR RABERS %
BUTREZZRMERGIE 36 RAFTE2ELM
IR Ay

RAEARNROGREBRG 2HA
Percentage
Family Corporate of share
interest interest Total capital issued
EEBITRA
ENY S NE)ED Bt ZBAT
- 73,581,206 73,581,206 12.25%
500,000 25,453,900 30,455,550 5.07%
4,501,650 25,453,900 30,455,550 5.07%

MizE4 : LimZTUEBBEREEEF 4,501,650 K47 &
2K Yeo BEUE B & B &EHEH 500,000 BERAD ©
Lim#Z+ % Yeo 5t 4 & 8 Yeoman Capital Management
Pte Ltd (T YCMPLD) (92 R4 - B UL ¥ YCMPLB RS
EeolimZtRYeo EESBERAENAATRE(RE
EER BERBRIEERET2EFNATER) L
BE/30,455550 % - RIBEFFRBMENRS > LmZtR
Yeo BEEHBEBEANEBRSERBEBRBENME
BADRIEERR -

BREXFIREN R-B-—F=A=+t—R0 42
A THAEBEEMERRR (RADTESRIN) RA
RNARDREBEROFEAREESRPERGE
BoRAFEZBLMATHBEILXR
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Negotiator Consultants Limited

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 in respect of the lease payment for warehouse rental of
approximately HK$3,826,000 paid to Negotiator Consultants
Limited (“NCL”) constitutes a continuing connected party
transaction. NCL is a subsidiary of a company in which Mr. TSE
Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. The
determination of the lease payments followed the pricing policies
and guidelines set out in the continuing connected transaction
announcement dated 22 March 2018.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the
Board containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group as
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 8 to 9), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 10 to 16), “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems” (pages 52 to 57), “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (pages 64 to 87) and “Financial Risk
Management” (pages 127 to 134). The above discussions form part
of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 35 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the SFO and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 76 to 81.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, our workforce was recorded at 149 employees
(2020: 152). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to HK$57,330,000 (2020: HK$75,151,000).

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and performance
of the Group and individual staff members (including the
Directors). The remuneration policy and remuneration packages of
the Executive Directors and members of the senior management of
the Group are considered by the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with its Terms of Reference. Details of Directors’
emoluments during the year are set out on page 146.
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REMUNERATION POLICY (coNT'D)

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2021, remuneration paid to members
of the senior management is as follows:
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Fr BUR ()

BREBASHTH
BE-T--F=A=+t-RLEE XNTFER
EEABZHMMT :

Number of

Remuneration bands N4 B individuals
AE

HK$0-HK$1,000,000 038 JTE 1,000,00038 7T 2

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases REEE

The largest supplier BRAMER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARMEERAG
Sales HER

The largest customer BAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate BEREFAGT

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers disclosed above.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 72 to 75.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 178.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) are set out in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 10 to 16 and pages 64 to 87 respectively of the Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Corporate Governance Report EXEBRE

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has
been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles of
good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons for non-compliance; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are

encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all the code provisions in the
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, except for the
following:

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings of the Company. An
independent non-executive Director was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 September 2020
due to other engagement.

Under the code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The
Board will continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement
going forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets
out a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors
confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 24 in Directors’ Report. In
accordance to the Articles of Association of the Company,
Directors who fill a casual vacancy on the Board shall be subject
to re-election at the first general meeting; and at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. Formal letters of appointment have been
issued to all Directors setting out all key terms and conditions of
their respective appointment. Each newly appointed Director will
also be issued with a letter of appointment.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 21 to 23.

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently. They also take
the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise. They scrutinise
the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals
and objectives, and monitor performance reporting. They make a
positive contribution to and independent judgement on the
development of the Company’s strategies, policies, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards or
conduct through independent, constructive and informed
comments. The Independent Non-executive Directors possess
appropriate professional qualification. Among them, some possess
expertise in accounting or financial management. Each
Independent Non-executive Director has also submitted an annual
written confirmation to the Company confirming his independence.
All Independent Non-executive Directors are engaged by contract
every year and are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules.
The Company considered that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held 4 regular and
2 non-regular Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure
that Directors could obtain all related information to make an
informed decision and to perform their duties and responsibilities,
documents for the Board meeting were supplied to Directors for
their consideration before the meeting according to the regulations
set out in the Listing Rules and code provisions of the Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 58.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
relevant materials are sent, in full, to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as much
notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Management provides the Board and board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable and enables Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Queries raised by Directors are
provided with a prompt and full response. Minutes of each Board
meeting and board committee meeting are kept by the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are available for
inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the decisions reached. Draft and final versions of
minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meeting is
held.

All Directors have free access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover, all
Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances in the furtherance of their duties at the Company’s
expense. The Company provides separate independent professional
advice to Directors to assist them to perform their duties.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.

The Company has arranged an insurance cover for directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal action against them arising
from corporate activities.

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they are familiar
with the Company’s operations and business, his responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies. In addition, an orderly succession for
appointments is maintained to ensure high standard of corporate
governance of the Company.

The Company encourages Directors and the senior management to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge, skills and understanding of the business
and markets in which the Group operates. The Company
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, as well as information related to the Group’s
business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices and enable
them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various forms
of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 58.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, ensuring
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company,
encouraging Directors with different views to voice their
concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and
ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (CONT'D) FERESHRLE @)

()  Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors () SFELEAEMEZIIFE2BERTEEIEH
annually without the presence of other Directors; and TESEE R

()  Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the () REABMREBIRIL  REZBES (45

effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non- FRFDTES)HESSHFLAERER X
executive Directors, and building constructive relations BUHITESHIYTESCHAEEZRM 2
between Executive and Non-executive Directors. o

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His ZEZRKEHESSEME BESE:
responsibilities are as follows:

(@) Providing leadership for the management; (a) BEEEHEE,

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s (b)) #{TEEESEERAND = 2K
strategies;

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the () HEBAARBRESEITLZERZ;
objectives set by the Board;

(d) Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to  (d) HAEZSRHEREEBRAMZT—INER
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with ~ (e) EEAQAREBRBEIFDEZBFR
its stakeholders;

() Putting in place programmes for management development () ZEEEEEHESRETTE
and succession;

(g Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and (g HEEBBEESEFTREFEE 2 ANIPEE
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as BrekHlE  URBEEERER &
disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated (h) ZBRESS-ENREBTHERTERES -
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@) To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

(e) To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

()  To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors. The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

() To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided

with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

The remuneration of members of the senior management is set out
on page 33.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors; assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors. No
Director had participated in the determination of his or her own
remuneration. Discussion results and recommendations of the
meetings have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 58. The remuneration policy of
the Group is set out on pages 32 to 33.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. WAN Sze Chung.

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a)

To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(8

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control system
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure
coordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

To review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to

endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(0)

(p)

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Appendix 14 C.3 of the Listing Rules; and

To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a)

(d)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2020, discussed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and reviewed the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2021 on 29 June 2021,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy) and practices, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s code of conduct and compliance manual, reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 58.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
were aware of any uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. As such, the Directors have prepared the
Company’s financial statements on a going concern basis.
Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages 88
to 95).
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the following external auditors’
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

External auditors INEERZ BH BT
— Audit services — BRRE
— Non-audit services — FEZIRFE
Total st

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the fees to external auditors,
amounting to HK$2,295,000 were primarily for audit services and
those for non-audit services amounted to HK$595,000, 25.9% of
the total fees. The non-audit services provided by the auditors was
tax compliance services and review of the financial information
related to major transaction.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

(d)  Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendations on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors at the 2020
annual general meeting having considered them having the
required character, integrity, independence (as appropriate to
Independent Non-executive Directors), professional knowledge
and experience to fulfil their role and to contribute to the Group,
and discussed the succession planning for the Company’s Board
and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings
during the year is set out on page 58.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 21 to 24.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Board Diversity Policy (cont'd)

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. The Nomination
Committee of the Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy
as appropriate and make recommendations on any proposed
revisions to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on objective criteria having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.

BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of architectural
builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
objective of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) is to become one of the leading quality suppliers of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of the Group
by managing customers’ expectation of getting products that
commensurate with their lifestyles and quality services.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate return to shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control system
and reviewing their effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk ~
Assessment
B B R A
The Process of
Internal
Control
Monitorin SN BE 400
i
\ Information &
Communication
MERRR
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)
Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(a)
(b)

(0)

The Group financial reports are reliable;
The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.

The key components of the Group’s internal control structure are
as follows:
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Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will
influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.
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Control Activities

The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

Integrity and ethics

Commitment to competence

Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation
Management philosophy and operating style
Organisational structure

Assignment of authority and responsibility

Human resource policies and practices
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (cONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd)

BEREERABEZRE @)

ERERERABEZRGNBE (E)

Information and Communication

The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution

B/t / B4T

4 Ultimate responsible body|
BREAKE

MERRZR

AEENRBESERBU TR :

Governance
B

Board of Diectors

Management

= Decision-making body
REHE

1

Department /

Funtinal Heas

i) I =

4

Risk owners
ABRAEEFEA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and assess
risk associated with their operations and report to the
management for review.

1
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SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d) BEREERABEZRGNBRE (&)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.

B
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern I.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with .T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (cONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’'d)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules.
The Company conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. The Company has included in
its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of
confidential information including Inside Information (as defined
under the SFO) in order to make sure appropriate handling and
dissemination of Inside Information is in place.

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2021

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls.

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd)

During the year, the Board through the Audit Committee, holds an
annual review to consider and discuss the risk management and
internal control systems (including but not limited to, the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function). The Board received a confirmation from the
management on the risk management and internal control systems,
and a confirmation from the ESG Workgroup that the resources
relating to ESG performance and reporting were considered
adequate. During the year, the Company did not have an internal
audit department; details of which are set out on page 35. Based
on the review, save as disclosed under the section “Principal Risks
and Uncertainties” on the Directors’ Report, the Board considers
that there is no significant change in the nature and extent of risks
and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment since the last annual review. The
Board considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AND
TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the
year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Remuneration

Board  Committee
Director Meeting Meeting
Ex EZeeE FMZEeed
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry EEi e 6/6
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert Eble g 0/6
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony BB LE 6/6
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin WERLE 6/6
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun ks 5/6 n
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ Bus#i78%
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BERE 6/6 N
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BREELE 6/6 N
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong ErE#T 6/6
Notes:
A:  Attending seminars, conference and/or forums
B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates
COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers were provided by the Company
Secretary on behalf of the Board. Furthermore, all Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that good information flow within the Board, Board policies,
Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a
key means to enhance corporate governance standard.
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on the
information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its
financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s
website at www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to Rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of shareholders at the
Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures shall be read out at the Meeting
by the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. In
addition, separate resolutions for substantially separated issues
shall be proposed to the Meeting for the approval of shareholders.

An annual general meeting is considered as an annual significant
event of the Company. Annual general meetings provide a precious
opportunity for shareholders and the Board to exchange
constructive opinions. All Directors shall attend the annual general
meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting, the
Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each Board
Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual general
meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.
For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment
community is intended to include the Company’s potential
investors as well as analysis reporting and analysis the Company’s
performance.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
written enquiries and concerns by post to the Board by addressing
them to the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office
as follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

The Company has established a number of channels for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and the
investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to
ensure its effectiveness as follows:

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened,
as well as by making available all corporate communications
on the Company’s website.

(a)

Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and the investment community shall be ensured
at all times.

Any question regarding this Policy shall be directed to the
Company Secretary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’ Enquiries
(@ Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly
available.

(c) Shareholders and the investment community shall be
provided with designated contacts, e-mail addresses and
enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable them to
make any query in respect of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify us from time to time through Tricor if
they wish to receive our corporate communications.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

4.

Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person if
a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is present
at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy
who is entitled to more than one vote does not have to use all
his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same way.
The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of
the meeting. After the closure of a general meeting, the poll
results will be published on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

10. The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

11. Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, in both
English and Chinese, are available on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at www.hkexnews.hk.
There was no significant change to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2021.
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OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 35 to 63.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:
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HONG KONG ISLAND &%

Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group's turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2021.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which comprises of a
director of the Company. The Workgroup translates the Board’s
vision into execution, gathers and analyses data collected from
various departments and reports back to the Board; the Board has
the overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on page 67. This Report was approved by
the Board on 29 June 2021.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. ESG-related risks, such as occupational
health and safety, product responsibility and customer satisfaction,
are identified and considered important by the Board. The Group,
through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies and
approaches in order to manage these ESG-related risks.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community involvement. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

*  Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community involvement;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

*  Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome
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The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets out
the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises a
director of the Company.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.

Stakeholders
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community involvement.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

e Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup reviewed the appropriateness
of the sampling of stakeholders with reference to the current course
of business to make sure the stakeholders being considered were
relevant to the Group.

Phase 2:

Key Internal stakeholders
engagement

SEPRER

FTEIHBENE DR

Phase 1:

Key Internal stakeholders
engagement

E—PEER -
TERBHFNESH

* Board of Directors
FRE
« Staff representatives

BIRX

* Suppliers
HEEm

* Customers

gistics team)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

To identify our reportable material aspects, we carried out an on-
going process of stakeholder engagement. Materiality assessment
was conducted to identify important issues to both internal and
external stakeholders of the Group by questionnaire. Material
topics include issues that have a direct or indirect impact on the
Group’s ability to create, preserve or erode economic,
environmental and social value of itself, its stakeholders and
society at large. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders.
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APPROACH (CONT'D) E10C)
Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd) rtrESRGE)
Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d) S — B E T E ()

Based on the materiality assessments conducted last year, concerns  RIEEFETHNEZ T AEEFTERPRE
on customer satisfaction, product responsibility and occupational ZEHHFHFHEZABEIZFREE EREETRE
safety and health were considered significant to the Group by key #¥Z2REBEHAEETHEE

internal and key external stakeholders of the Group:

Energy use management

AN =

RREAEE High concern
) V\/‘at:erkyse management R

KERER

3, Use of the other major materials
HtbE 2 RBER

Operating compliance

EES

Staff retention and development

ETHERER

Occupational safety and health

BEz2RiEE

Product responsibilty

EmER

8 Customer satisfaction
BEFREE

g, Customer privacy Ce—

BFTLE Low concern High
. I concern
Procurement practices RYMEEE Internal Stakeholders gFﬁEEE

RIE W&
Research and development

R EER &

Local community involvement

FaEHESHE

10 6

B E

.
7
[=]

11

4

12

External Stakeholders

10
11

12

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the F&EEEECHREREFGER - FAEERE
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue its ~ #EH D ERZBER [ A KT - LTI RRE LS
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high EXRSENAHFAZREZEEHES -
sustainability impact.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group identified stakeholders’ priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, customer service

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. During the year, the Group
enhanced data collection approaches and recorded certain key
performance indicators (KPls) as stated in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules. KPIs were measured and recorded regularly by the
ESG Workgroup. The Group would go beyond minimum disclosure
requirements where appropriate.

Sustainability performance data was analysed. Both KPIs and
analysis were reported to the Board for discussion and
establishment of improvement plans.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute to
the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 73.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 75. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A1 Emissions (cont’d)

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to

non-hazardous waste handling during the year.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes)
NOx (tonnes)
SOx (tonnes)
Particulate matter (tonnes)
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
(COse tonnes)
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes)
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO,e tonnes)
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area
(CO,e tonnes/m?)
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee
(COze tonnes/employee)
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per floor area
(COse tonnes/m?)
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per employee
(COze tonnes/employee)
Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)'
Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes)
Total non-hazardous waste produced
per floor area (tonnes/m?)
Total non-hazardous waste produced
per employee (tonnes/employee)

! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible.

A2 Use of Resources
Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones since 2016. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower
the indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out

RiIE @)

AT EER ()
BERZVUTERINAIERERAURDE - RAF
E AEETEZINEBEEZTERVEENRE -

fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to

morning to reduce energy consumption.

ROBFE ©
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2021 2020
—E—F —ECEE
BERBE A S (25E 1) (W) 0.005 0.006
ag by (W) 0.004 0.006
e by (W) 0.000 0.000
FEFR T (W) 0.000 0.000
BEREHEREE (HE1K2)
(ZE LI EEM) 559.695 741.670
BEHR (EE 1) (Z8thEEM) 14.859 25.269
s (BE2) (— St EEn) 544.837 716.401
BNEEEENEER (BE?2)
(ZEtREEM F5K) 0.067 0.084
SEEENEEHER (8EE2)
(ZEttmEEM ES) 4.066 5.117
BUEEEENEREE (BE1R2)
“SLBEEM,FHK) 0.069 0.087
BREENHREE (BE1R2)
(Z&EtREEM ES) 4.177 5.298
BEEEYELELE ()
BEBRZYELHAS (W) 7.830 7.412
BNEEEEMEEEEEEYEE
(Mg, 753K) 0.001 0.001
BREEMELEEEEYEE
(Wi, 1BE) 0.058 0.053
' BEBENRBESMTRE -
A2EREH
B
BZZE—RER RACBESHAERNEA  EmE
FETREZA - ERREHEFN23°CE25°C °

e EHPHERXNARERCESERBLEDBE!
& o LEDBXEHERDEER  BRBREERNRE
(ILBER)  WEHRBEENSE - RFIETEIE
SRAHEEDRRMN TS LA BER T8 5 K& o
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources (cont’d)
Water

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every
drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps
with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water flow
when feasible. Nevertheless, water consumption increased during
the year as a result of enhanced hygienic measures in times of
COVID-19. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart

green design) to the market.

Total energy consumption (MWh)
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)?
Total direct energy consumption
per floor area (MWh/m?)
Total direct energy consumption
per employee (MWh/employee)
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh)
Total indirect energy consumption
per floor area (MWh/m?)
Total indirect energy consumption
per employee (MWh/employee)
Water consumption (m?)
Water consumption per floor area (m*/m?)
Water consumption per employee (m*/employee)
Total packaging material (tonnes)
Total packaging material per floor area
(tonnes/m?)
Total packaging material per employee

(tonnes/employee)

2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US.
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EERKDREGERR - KERZTEHEBRNVE
BEZEESME]IRE SBEIRERDAK-
BB ERKERBERRBEIKER - &
REUTHERT AERERARZHARE - A
HRE2019BRBESHEEHEMBEHEER - &
FEFKBEMEN - FARERBAHERD - ZME
mEHESERRER RRBER - REFEHR
BRERRRET) ©

2021 2020
—E-—-fF —E-TF
geREFEE KR 855.288 983.743
HERRAREE JKRK)? 50.215 68.001
BUEEEmENEEZEREAES
(KRB FI7K) 0.006 0.008
BEREENEZEREREE
KRR ER) 0.375 0.486
BiEZseRAEE LR 805.073 915.742
BUEEEENEEZERARES
(KRB, FI7K) 0.100 0.107
BHAEESNEERRAKE
CkEEE ER) 6.008 6.541
FEKE (LK) 1,065.473 593.735
BZEmEMNEKE LK FHK) 0.132 0.070
BHEEMNEKE(ITKES) 7.951 4.241
BEMBIEE (HE) 2.877 3.270
BlUgmmENEEHEE
(Mg, F53K) 0.000 0.000
BEREENEENBEE
(Mg, 1E8) 0.021 0.023
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 73.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e  Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) HoHFEL S ()
Office paper (tonnes) WA= AR ()
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENFI ¥ A A% ()

7\

Up and forward

RiIE @)

ASRERRXARER
L HE
BEBEBD>ASHBHNE3E -

B AR

FERAEABRLTEEETIY ALK BHRM
EHZESRFNFER  HERBERENES
HY (NERB 8 BRI REBTERARMER
ZEERRE  THEEREK BN - WFEHE -
BMEEREOITENAR (FINEEITE - /788
MERE) - HRRBSEH KM LEZABER
@R MIEBBUREITEN—HEIAR - thid » KR
WESMERITENHSE - IWEBEITENWRR - U
EEA-

EMWEERSRERNRTAN  tNRERDH
HERBFABENENREHRERE - RABBOM
REEZIMBERZEE - WO HMEBEEAE KM
/N

o AMERZEGRBUFEFHELTEE  RIENA
EDERRAMERELEE G LASNEREL
ATHERE -

EREBFRE

BEESHEESTFRENEASH - 5 TRENRK
ARE  2EBRIEAEEFIGA - HAXE
FEEEEFHRNBEERERBERE AR
BT LT

o BN BETHRBAFAS fINTBAZTEN

BATE
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6.748 5.214
1.368 2.609
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.

B1 Employment
As at 31 March 2021, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 134 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’ Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer. All staff
members are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution, irrespective of their gender, age, disability, family
status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to employment issues during
the year.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

HE

ERRSTER
AEEEEE A BREERER  ERET
THE - RRRASE AMENBETRHTER
& MAEE RETRAFERZEMANEE -
B RFEAEREFERT—BEC « RASK
HRMERERE2NTEESE  LRETHRES
T -

B11E1E
MR-ZB-Z—F=ZA=+—0 ' AEEMNEBETA
HHEI134% -

HMNERIRFESEZERTE  BHEETRNERE
MHAES  ZEREIE EEBERRBREHF
B RPRHABRTE D 2HMETBURS BERS
BESRAT - AKEBNEEEREREAZRESRE
BFPEHRE  EPEERE  HFMRERN FI B
F AR - AEEDRBES 288 - REMERME
HEFfd - MAREMER - Fie - BE - RERR &
IR REEMRERE - RAFE - AEE W EEE
BRI RARIE -

FEBRHEBFEEDRIBREUESREREF UK
FrREL REEIZRELTE AKECZHF
BT AR ERAC A4S [HEBIRRER AR A L -
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) BREREIER (&)
B1 Employment (cont'd) B1 fE1% ()

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is AEBETHEZBET - HARWT :
comprised of:

Gender 1% 3|

EEEEE 57% 43%
EEEEE

[ [ [ [ [ [] B Male B [ Female Zft

Age group £ i 4 5l

ENEEEEEEE
FEEESNEEE 7% 64% 29%

Below 30 =+ T [0 30-50 =+ZE&+ B Over50 #BE+

Length of service & # F

19% 7% 23%

> 3-5 years BB=ZHF [ >5-10 years BBEZ+F

A8
t
Il
-

0-3 years =

|
|
|
|
IIIII= 14% 37%
|
I

B >10-15years BB+E+HE W > 15years BBtTHEF
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work in. Apart from that, a number of
initiatives have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in
health and safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e  Staff handbook (detailing employees’ benefits and welfare,
holiday and leave, working hours, feedback mechanisms)

All staff members, before going to construction sites, have attended
safety training. When entering construction sites, they are equipped
with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees. Set
out below are some training and development programmes:

e Sales and product training

> Product training
> In-house training across sales representatives

e Management training
> For directors and senior management team to keep them
abreast of the latest regulatory requirements, corporate
governance practices, macro-economics and consumer
trends
e Warehouse operation training

e Back office operation training

In light of the outbreak of COVID-19, we provided hygiene training
to frontline staff to make sure they are properly protected.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d)

B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.

B5 Supply Chain Management

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The number of major suppliers, in terms of purchase amount, by
geographical region is indicated as below:

FTEHRERBS

2w

ERERE IER(E)

B4 % TR
BFETHELBHBEHNEREIR YEIR
EAR4L THETRE -

B5 RIEZEE1E
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PEFEEFTANEE  URHE—RIERURE
BFWEKR-

RBESHEMNS RS NETEH/EFHREN
T

MBTERERAA-F-—FFH
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont'd)

We pay attention to the operating practices of our suppliers
(including but not limited to employment practices, product
responsibility, anti-corruption policy). We regularly review their
production capacity, technical capability, quality control systems
and personnel quality.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we requested for green features in our products, such as water flow
control and FSC-certified materials. We will continue our efforts in
bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, the scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards. Training sessions are held to help sub-
contractors familiarise with the features and installation techniques
of our products. We conduct appraisals to evaluate sub-
contractors’ performance.

B6 Product Responsibility

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish strong
customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of
our products originate from Europe where rigorous
product testing regulations and requirements are in
place. Nevertheless, we carry out a number of
measures to ensure product safety, such as
warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont'd)

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purpose. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct that
complies with HKEX expectations on corporate governance and
the Independent Commission Against Corruption’s anti-corruption
policies. Our staff handbook has outlined such code of conduct to
all staff members including prevention of bribery. There was no
legal case brought against the Group for corruption during the
year.

Subcontract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on subcontract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

B8 Community Investments

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. We also encourage its employees
to do the same to contribute to their neighbourhood. A care to the
society will eventually benefit our future generations.
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company at its
Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk
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HONG KONG QUALITY ASSURANCE AGENCY
e ——

VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective of Verification

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
engaged by the E.Bon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 599) “E.Bon”
to undertake an independent verification of its Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“the Report”). The Report stated
the economic, environmental and social performance of E.Bon in
the period of 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 for its major
operation in Hong Kong.

The aim of this verification is to provide a reasonable assurance on
the reliability of the report content. The Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our evidence gathering process was
designed to obtain a reasonable level of assurance as set out in the
standard for the purpose of devising the verification conclusion.
The extent of this verification process covered the criteria set in the
ESG Guide of the SEHK.

The verification process included verifying information relevant to
reporting and management procedures, including stakeholder
engagement methods and result, and materiality assessment
processes. In addition, system and process for collecting, collating
and reporting sustainability performance data were verified. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the selected representative
samples were also thoroughly examined during the verification
process.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conT'D)

Independence

E. Bon is responsible for the collection and presentation of the
information presented. HKQAA does not involve in calculating,
compiling, or in the development of the Report. Our verification
activities are independent from E.Bon. There was no relationship
between HKQAA and E.Bon that would affect the independence of
HKQAA for providing the verification service.

Conclusion
Based on the verification results, HKQAA has obtained reasonable
assurance and is in the opinion that:

e The Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Guide of the SEHK;

e The Report illustrates the sustainability performance of E.Bon
in a clear, comparable and timely manner; and

e The data and information disclosed in the Report are reliable
and complete.

Nothing has come to HKQAA attention that the selected
sustainability performance information and data contained in the
Report has not been prepared and presented fairly and honestly, in
material aspects, in accordance with the verification criteria. In
conclusion, the Report reflects truthfully the sustainability
commitments, policies and performance of E.Bon, and discloses
transparently their sustainability performance that is commensurate
with their sustainability context and materiality.

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Meico Cheong
General manager, Intelligence Business
July 2021
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Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : S
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 72-73
—RIKE FHBERKBERBHR - MARIBHIDT AERETERYNELSH : BT
(a) the policies; and
BE R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
BIHRTABERZENEEEERRS
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
HER
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Comply 72-73
BRAEMIEEAL BRE R R BB BIE FeAS Y
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity Comply 73
BERAMIERAL2 BERBLASRER (MEMR)EE FEASY
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity Explain 73
BERAMIERALS FEEEEEENEER (WMER)EE e
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity Comply 73
BREMERAL4 FEEEZEEVEER (MER)EE FEAS Y
KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them Comply 72-73
BEREMIEREALS HALPTET O E R 8 B R R B E G L B BT RIS R BF
KPI'AT.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 72-73
BREMIEIEREALG description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them BF
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TRFTERER Y 2 B8R
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : BRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 73-74
—RIFE materials Peis
BREAER(BFEER « KREMEME) BB
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity Comply 74
BREMIEEA2.1 RERESNWEER SEREREAEEREE FEAS Y
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Independent Auditor’s Report X % ¥k &

_E
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To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
96 to 177, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2021;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Provision for inventory obsolescence

e Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.11 and 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements
and estimates

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held inventories of HK$142
million.

The Group determines the net realisable value (“NRV”) at each
period end based on the estimated selling price less cost to sell and
the estimated quantity to be sold in the future. It requires significant
judgements and assumptions to be made to determine the
estimated selling price and sales quantity of individual products,
including historical experience of selling products of similar nature,
current market conditions and other available information. The
estimations are also subject to uncertainties as a result of future
changes of market trends, customer demands and fashion trends.

We focused on this area because of the significance of the gross
inventory balance to the consolidated financial statements and the
estimation and judgement involved in determining the provision.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls by which
management estimated the NRV, and found the assessment
processes to be consistent with those of the prior years.

For products with material balances as at year end, we discussed
with management and evaluated the assumptions on estimated
future sales, which were based on (i) secured orders received from
customers as at year end; (ii) historical sales data in the past two
years which reflected the expected life cycle of similar products;
and (iii) future sales strategies that might require adjustments to the
historical sales pattern for the selected products.

We obtained evidence for these explanations and evaluated the
relevance of these factors by using our industry knowledge. We
tested, on a sample basis, the secured orders from customers and
NRV of products by comparing the estimated selling price and
sales quantity of individual products with the corresponding post
year-end sales data.

We considered these assumptions appropriate based on the
procedures performed above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

Refer to notes 2.8 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements
and estimates.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had trade and retention
receivables of HK$79 million and contract assets of HK$4 million.

Management assesses the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. These receivables are grouped by shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery. The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experience and are adjusted to reflect the
effects of current conditions as well as forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. Receivables relating to
customers with known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for provision for impairment.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade and
retention receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters

We understood, evaluated and tested the key control procedures
performed by which management assessed the expected credit
losses, including its procedures on periodic review of aged
receivables and assessment on expected credit losses allowance of
these receivables.

We tested the accuracy of the ageing report of trade and retention
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to invoices.

We tested the subsequent settlement of trade and retention
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to bank receipts.

We obtained management’s assessment on the expected credit
losses allowance of these receivables. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on the historical
settlement pattern, correspondence with customers, evidence from
external sources including public search results relating to the
financial circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors applied in management’s assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

We considered the estimation and judgement made by
management in determining the expected credit losses allowance
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets were
supportable by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&ZmE @&

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZE=-Z=--F=A=+-HLFE

2021 2020
—EZ-fF —ETERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
gz FET FHET
Revenue Uk & 5 422,454 510,436
Cost of sales SHERA 9 (263,869) (303,706)
Gross profit EX 158,585 206,730
Other income Habug A 6 3,711 3,632
Other gains/(losses), net Hipzs, /(B8) - F58 7 3,587 (4,110)
Net impairment losses on financial ERREHNEEZRERR
and contract assets REE 21 (139 -
Distribution costs Pk 1o 9 (81,956) (104,228)
Administrative expenses THRX 9 (67,047) (79,876)
Operating profit BRI 16,741 22,148
Finance income B FEUR A 178 136
Finance costs BisE R (4,324) (5,895)
Finance costs, net MKER TR 10 (4,146) (5,759)
Profit before income tax BRET BB AER 12,595 16,389
Income tax expense Fris%iRE X 13 (1,826) (5,063)
Profit for the year attributable to AAB B EELFERF
equity holders of the Company 10,769 11,326
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) Hfh2mEukz (B)
Items that may be subsequently BEREAEEN 7 EEERL
reclassified to profit or loss HH
Exchange gains/(losses) on translation BRERIINEBIBRRZ
of financial statements of fE S ks (B518)
foreign operations 1,000 (1,369)
Items that will not be reclassified AETEEN D EEERH
subsequently to profit or loss HH
Gains/(losses) on revaluation of BB RAYEER
properties held for own use Uz (EE) 16 6,338 (9,150)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of FHEEMLBEERYEZ
properties held for own use HEge 26 (1,046) 1,509
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Other comprehensive income/(expenses) F£EH 2 mEUE

for the year, net of tax (BAXZ) - BRBLE
Total comprehensive income for KRR EEEREEERZE
the year attributable to equity W48 EE

holders of the Company

Earnings per share (expressed in BROER (ABRBIWLS
HK cents per share) B1)
— Basic and diluted — EAREE

The notes on pages 103 to 177 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Notes

By aE

15

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
6,292 (9,010)
17,061 2,316

1.79 cents B4l 1.89 cents B

103 E177 B2 AZS R ERER D °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #&#& ##&AR5% &

As at 31 March 2021 R=ZE=—-#=A=+-H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Deferred income tax assets
Retention and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
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Notes
FifaE
BE
kRBEE
ME BERRE 16
FREEE 17
REWHE 18
EERBHREE 26
FEWR B Fi & H Ath FE WX 21
REEE
=FE 20
FEWERTR - EWIRB R K
H b FE YRR 21
EREE 21
AR E AR ATEHE
ReERBREEEY 22
HwEE
=
ARG IEERELER
&N 27
i 28
RS

2021 2020
—g=—f —z-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
245,891 175,057
65,141 72,188

32,300 31,600

7,019 6,458

5,874 6,163

356,225 291,466
142,451 144,870
93,109 153,822

4,325 3,629

3,604 1,400

102,964 83,434
________ 346,453 387,155
702,678 678,621
60,060 60,060
401,172 390,117
461,232 450,177



LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other provision
Lease liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 177 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
R
Director

EF

The notes on pages 103 to 177 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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23
17
26

23
23
25
17
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2021 2020
—g--% —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FEx

3,800 3,500

41,920 43,929

19,276 19,560

64,996 66,989

35,975 34,544

42,248 77,189

851 807

28,477 33,617

66,574 10,656

2,325 4,642

176,450 161,455
________ 241,446 228444
702,678 678,621

FIEI7TENGREUBEBRRELEETGR_-F
Z—EXAZtHABHME YRTIESKREE -

TSE Sun Po, Tony

e
Director

EE

F103ZE177 B2 AZS R ERE - -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #&#Ea 8%

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZE=-Z=--F=A=+-HLFE

Z

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  feserve  eamings Total
Rx ROEE EftRE  A0EE EXEE EXRE ITRE  REEN At
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEx TEx TExr  TEr  TiEn

At 1 April 2019 RZE-NENA-H 60,060 1200 143,749 6,979 2,89 257 2,140 245594 462,876
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - - - 1326 11326
Other comprehensive income b2 EE
Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ £EBNERGRERZER

statements of foreign operations 53] - - - - - (1,369) - - (1,369)
Losses on revaluation of properties BEBRNXERER

held for own use - - (9,150) - - - - - (9,150)
Tax effect relating to revaluation of RREMGRRANE HENE

properties held for own use - - 1,509 - - - - - 1,509
Total comprehensive income PEURER - - (7,641) - - (1,369 - 11326 2316
Dividends (Note 14(a)) 2 (W 14a) - - - - - - - (15015 (15,015)
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREIE (W 28)

(Note 28) - - - - - - (37) 37 -
Transactions with owners HiEE2R 5 - - - - - - 37)  (14978)  (15,015)
At 31 March 2020 RZBEZEE=A=+-H 60,060 1201 136,108 6,979 2,896 (1,112) 2103 241942 450,177

The notes on pages 103 to 177 are an integral part of these #103ZE 177 E2HEAZEEATBER—F5 -
consolidated financial statements.
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At 1 April 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial

statements of foreign operations
Gains on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of

properties held for own use
Total comprehensive income

Dividends (Note 14(a))
Appropriation to statutory reserve
(Note 28)

Transactions with owners

At 31 March 2021

R=2-FFMA-A

FERR

b2 EkE

BESNIBIBRRZER
Wi

KB ANEER G

REEUERNRHEYE

REVEAE

B8 (& 14)
EEREDE (HiE20)
RfEELRS

RZBZ-%=f=1-H

Share Share Revaluaion ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
B RGEE EfRE SHRE EXRE EXRE ERE REER CEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEx Tz TEr TEx Tz TEx TEx  TEzn
60060 1201 136108 6979 2896 (1,112 2,103 241942 450,177
B} - ; . - - - 10769 10769
- - - - - 1,000 - - 1,000
- - 6338 - - - - - 6338
- - (1,046) - - - - - (1,046)
- - 5,292 - - 1,000 - 10,769 17,061
- - - - - - - (6,006) (6,006)
- - - - - - n 22) -
- - - - - - 22 (6,029) (6,000)
60,060 1,201 141,400 6,979 2,896 (112) 2125 246,683 461,232

The notes on pages 103 to 177 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

F1032 177 BT AZEEE

BT D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZE=-Z=--F=A=+-HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax (paid)/refund

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceed from disposal/(payment for
settlement) of forward contracts

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Sales proceeds of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid on bank borrowings
Principal elements of lease payments
Interest paid on leases

Proceeds of trust receipt loans
Repayment of trust receipt loans
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange gains/(losses) on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The notes on pages 103 to 177 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes
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29(a)

29(b)

29(c)

29(c
29(c

NESINE

22

2021 2020
:g: - EF —_ 7 —_ E'E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
97,247 110,180
(8,388) 305
88,859 110,485
588 (1,260)
37,393) (5,965)
- 109

178 136
(36,627) (6,980)
15,000 2,164
(20,666) (12,059)
(1,374) (1,298)
(31,498) (39,275)
(2,950) (4,597)
96,830 133,292
(82,296) (149,328)
(6,006) (15,015)
(32,960) (86,116)
19,272 17,389
83,434 66,365
258 (320)
102,964 83,434
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GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use, investment properties and derivative financial
instruments, which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& 8 ## & MizE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.1
(i)

(ii)

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Adoption of new standards and amendments to
standards

The Group has adopted the following new
standards and amendments to standards which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on 1
April 2020:

Definition of a Business
(amendments)

Revised Conceptual
Framework for
Financial Reporting

Definition of Material
(amendments)

Amendments to HKFRS 3
(Revised)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 1
(amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

The adoption of the above new standards and
amendments to standards did not have any
significant financial impact on these consolidated
financial statements.

Amended standards early adopted by the Group
The Group has early adopted the following
amendment for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 April 2020:

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions
(amendments)

HKFRS 16

The nature and the impact of amendments to
HKFRS 16 are set out as Note 2.1.1.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

The following are new standards, interpretation
and amendments to standards that have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020 or later periods, but have not been early

adopted by the Group:

2.1 RBEE(E)

FEANSETAS

FESHBRUE @

(iii) New standards, interpretation and amendments to (i) EREMBIFTER - RERERE
standards which are not yet effective HES

UTREEMESLARE-Z2F
—B—BY Rz AREEET
HERBRRBBREER - HERE
B ERERRAZHER - BER

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after
RT3 B4
LAt 0 <l
FEHBEXR

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
(amendments)

MREEYE — F2MER(BFTA)

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
BERETEREN  BBUKERS
RRAF 45 - BRUBREER
7% DEMBHREEANFIRR
BERMBRELRE 16RETA

Annual Improvements Project

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

1 January 2021

—F--%-H-H

1 January 2022

(amendments)
FEXERE ERMBREN-S-NFE_SZFFERE 2 —T--F-A-H
(BRI A)
Amendment to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business (amendments) 1 January 2022
BRMBRELERE 3RIETA Rz ER (BFA) —T--F-A-H
Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (amendments) 1 January 2022
BERETENE 16 RETLR E RN E RN —T--F-A-H

Amendment to HKAS 37

EBEERISE 37 REETA
Amendment to HKAS 1

BEREERNE 1 REITAR
HKFRS 17

BERMBRELRE 175
HK Int 5 (2020)

ERREBESR(ZETF)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BEMBREENE1055R

EABAETHERIZE 285%

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (amendments)

BE RAREERIREE (BFTR)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current (amendments)

1 January 2022

—B--f-A-H
1 January 2023

BEESBARBHIRE (BFT4) —E-=F—-A—H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
RBEH —E-=%—-A—H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (2020))

BEAREE S (CE-ZE)MBEHRRNES —
ERABEESTHEEEREERRNEHERNSE
(BEBREBESH(ZEEF))

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture (amendments)

REEREBENRSGECECANEELE
HEE

1 January 2023

—E-=F—-A—H

To be determined

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.1

Basis of preparation (cont'd)
(iii) New standards, interpretation and amendments to

standards which are not yet effective (cont’d)
Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of the above new
standards, interpretation and amendments to
standards but is not yet in a position to state
whether they will result in substantial changes to
the Group’s significant accounting policies and the
presentation of its financial statements.

2.1.1Change in accounting policies

The Group has early adopted Amendment to
HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
retrospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendment
provides an optional practical expedient allowing
lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent
concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may
account for qualifying rent concessions in the same
way as they would if the rent concessions were not
lease modifications. The practical expedient only
applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only
if all of the following conditions are met: i) the
change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; ii) any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments
due on or before 30 June 2021; and iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to
all qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions.
Rent concessions of HK$6,028,000 (Note 7) have
been recognised in other gains in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2021, with a corresponding
adjustment to the lease liabilities. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2020.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ significantly from that which would be
determined using revaluation values at the reporting
date.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Over the shorter of unexpired
term of lease or 50 years
Over the shorter of lease

terms or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’” useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
profit or loss within “Other gains/(losses), net”.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e  those to be measured at amortised cost; and

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.8.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.8.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont'd)
2.8.3Measurement (cont'd)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The
Group’s financial assets carried at amortised
cost comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.8.3Measurement (cont’d)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “Other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.8.4Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. Details on how the
Group determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

2.11

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other gains/(losses), net”.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held
at call with banks.

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.17 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or
the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

b)

Deferred income tax (cont’d)

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.19 Employee benefits

(@

b)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from
the customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group satisfy the performance
obligation to the customer.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.21 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders” hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in the
wholesale and retail market. Revenue from sales of
goods is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer.

Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to contractors
and property developers. Revenue from the
services rendered by the Group is recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The Group has applied the output
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of construction contracts is measured
with reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.22 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

— amounts expected to be payable by the group
under residual value guarantees

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the group exercising that
option.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

— any initial direct costs, and

—  restoration costs.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.22 Leases (cont’d)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 18). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on
their nature. The group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.24 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.25 Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

— the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2021, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$152,000 (2020:
increase/decrease by approximately HK$304,000).
The 50 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.
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Z

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 BEKEREREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 HEEBEEE)
(b) Foreign currency risk (cont'd) (b) IMNEREE (E)

At 31 March 2021, if the EURO (“EUR”) had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the HKD
with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have changed as follows. The changes
are mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR denominated
cash and bank deposits, trade payables and
borrowings.

R-BE-_—F=A=+—-8 &K%
BE(BE)RZBTRE FE
5% MATEHth@ e TE
BIEERNGEBNT - SBHTE
HRBREUBEAENZRERIIR
TR EBIRAREREEER
Wz, BT o

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLFE

2021 2020
—g-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$"000
FET FET
Post-tax profit (decrease)/increase  EBZE HR L T &5 -
when EUR BRBL R OBl /480
— strengthened by 5% — FES5% (1,057) (433)
— weakened by 5% — B{E5% 1,057 433
(© Credit risk © ERAR
(i) Risk management (i) BEREE

FEBzFERBEIERAR
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The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. There has no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is close to zero.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

(i)

Risk management (cont’d)

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is close to zero.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of customers and the
corresponding historical credit losses
experienced. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c¢) Credit risk (cont’d)
(i) Risk management (cont'd)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 was determined as
follows for trade and retention receivables
and contract assets:

As at 31 March 2021 R-B-—%
=A=+—H

Provision on individual basis 1% {& Bl & 4%

Provision on collective basis %1t [ E &

As at 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZTHF
=B=+—-H

Provision on individual basis % {E 2 & 2 &

Provision on collective basis 1%t [F) & & &

1 30 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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3.1 BIEEEEE (&)
(© fFEERRE (&)
(i) EREE(E)

EZEEE RZZT=-—F
R—_E-_FEF=H=+—H
B FE LK BR TR % FE AR B8 R A
RENEENBEBREEE

mT

Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets

BURS R ERRERUAREGNEE

Weighted
average Gross Net
expected  carrying Loss  carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
¥

BHERER KELE BREF KEFE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TExT  TER

100% 904 (904) -
0.17% 82,977 (140) 82,837

83,881 (1,044) 82,837

Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets

YRR ERRERUARENEE

Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
REFE

BHERE KELE BHERE KEFE
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TET  TERT  TE=R

100% 878 (878) -
0% 145,215 - 145,215

146,093 (878) 145,215
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Between
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$102,964,000
(2020: approximately HK$83,434,000) that could
be readily realised to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk.
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below:
Total
contractual
undiscounted Less than
cash flows 3 months
BERRHR
BeRE SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
As at 31 March 2021 R-B=-F
=A=t-A
Trade and other payables ERRTREMEA R 35,975 35,975
Borrowings (Note) AR (M)
— unsecured — EEH 22,513 11,711
— secured —BER 50,561 1,377
Foreign exchange forward MEEBEH
contract
— Inflow —HA (27,371) (27,371)
— Qutflow —hid 28,222 28,222
Lease liabilities HEBE 73,208 7,907
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZZZEF
ZB=t-H
Trade and other payables FEATERT R E AR e 34,544 34,544
Borrowings (Note) fE (M)
— unsecured —ERH 9,048 5,150
— secured —BiKE 1,671 358
Foreign exchange forward MERHEH
contract
— Inflow —RA (34,022) (34,022)
— Outflow —hd 34,829 34,829
Lease liabilities HEGE 83,009 10,029

3,898
1,074

4,559 9,118 32,088
25,119 18,337 -

239 - -
18,607 28,171 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its statement of financial position, as
the borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$40,968,000 (2020: approximately HK$238,000)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3

3.2

3.3

Capital management (cont'd) 3.2

Total bank borrowings (Note 24) RIRATER (HRE 24)
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEEE (ME17)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) & : R&RBEESEEY

(s 22)
Net debt BEFE
Total equity RS
Gearing ratio BEERMBHER

The net debt position resulted primarily from normal
operating and investing activities of the Group which
include the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note 16) during the year.

Fair value estimation 3.3
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other

receivables, contract assets and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-
term maturities.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings classified
under property, plant and equipment and investment
properties are carried at fair value. Details of the fair
value measurement of these leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties are disclosed in
Note 16 and Note 18, respectively.

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

EAREE ()
2021 2020
—_E-— —E-EE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
66,574 10,656
70,397 77,546
(102,964) (83,434)
34,007 4,768
461,232 450,177
7.4% 1.1%

AEENERFERLIEEZERBAEE
WEREERRETDFIY  BERE
M - BB KRR (KEE16) o

DA

HRAEETREE (D) (BEE
AR - EBREBRREMERR - &
NEEURBRERBESEEY)  REX&
EeREE(BEENRRARAEMEN
R AHEE  TTEEREERERR
BHEREE  HAREEAREERS

REBDEAME BERRBERRE
MEHET W REFRAANEIER
ZEHELHREBFRREYVELLE
FBZHBORNME 162 181KE
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 B

3.3 Fair value estimation (cont'd) 3.3
The Group measures its fair value of the financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2021 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2021:

Level 1
5B
HK$'000
TR
As at 31 March 2021 R=ZB--§=A=+-H
Liabilities R
Foreign exchange forward contracts NERBEN — FHEER
— not qualified for hedge accounting  fER%HE -
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZB-25=A=t-H
Liabilities &8
Foreign exchange forward contracts NERHEN — THEER
— not qualified for hedge accounting R &t -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

Z

B EE @)

D REME (&)
AEBZRARE D E 2 R ERM AT
RBABBHER FER-F=—
ZAZt+—HRAREIRZEMIA
ZARE - BRBARBIRT XAt
MoEBADAERBRAN=EER

o HMREEESEEERIRERTSEN
HE(RERE) (E1/8) -

e BRTIFI1EBFEENBREN ZE
EFEENTEENEMGEAR
B AAEEAPINER) RHEE
(BNRBEER)(E28) -

o EBEFEBEAFRBUBETSH
BERwARE (WA TBEEEAR
BIE3RB) -

THREINFAEER-_ZFT=-—-F=A
=+ -BRANESIRZERMTA :

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E_E FEZE wct

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET

851 - 851

807 - 807



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

BEREFHEE R

REBREBELRREMERTETMEEE
Ry BEEREBREZRRTHARRSE
2B o

FEBHARELGERRBRR - IEHSEHE

HRE

BEBLEABRERNERE - HEER

BERT—EMRFEZRAEEKEARARE
Rz s REBRAT ©

4.1

4.2

BEFERE
RREBRRFHFEMERESRERN
FEEESTEFERE - BREEELS
BREERBEARHEMEE  YHBEFE
ZRAEREF EEFE - ABBE
FEREREXEBBREDP ZENEERS
E AR H R LS o TR AR AN R
BEERE UWEESPEMABELRE
BFERNZFE 2 REERBERE

EURARERRERRENEERE
B
AEBERENERRARBEZRNR
RUMEVIRRRERRBERRENEE
EHRERE ARERBEASENE
LENR -BATSRAREREDR
HYRTRE MRS EAHAEFHZERR
REERESENRAHE - BHEE
BRI R EEMAHE RS - 78
HBEFRMET AR FRZESTERE
W R TR B9 BRI (B 2 i T 2 B R AR Y
FEW R IEREEE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings may be different and thus may have an impact
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

4

Z

BAREF R HAE @

4.3

4.4

BRWERERREER

FEERBEIAHEERZEFERBEU
REMBEREBSIZZIRENRKEK
RELE BHRETTHEENKEDS
ETIRZBYRASHLEENIRENE
MEIREMERE - ARBREQET
HERNRETEIRENZaHNNE -
BHRA BEHERSNREMS -
HAEIRBATIREBEESQPIERR
mE - BEIRNATREBEIBER
RMBRA  HEBRBRMY R EEE
B HEBREL TR ZHEU
REBE2ERMETE HEFERR
B cHEE ASREEEEEBLER
FeHEBERFAESRRNEEER -

MR R HIKE  ANRE  BE
HERANREBBIEHAERE Y
B MU EENE TR -

HETHWREFHE

DAREZEEBBRBLUYMERNERT
B2 ERMER AEHMAE  AKE
ZEMHIEEEGEMUADHETEER
HMELHRBFETHEZER - HF
SEERATEMMAAN  IEELHR
BEZAREREF K MESRE

BERATZIHE -



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

Sale of goods EmiHE
Contract revenue AR
Timing of revenue recognition: W R B R
— At a point in time — R — BB
— Over time — BB

4

EX

4.5

Wy 2

SRR HE @)

Fris®t

fief 1R T BE A8 7R 2R B BR 0 35 I DAIE 85 8 8
BiE - AEEFRSHEESZHDRE M
BIEBEER - BE ] TR ZIELM
EHEERETEREEEBFHEEHE -
FTERBRBM - RRERBUEF KK
REBZHERBEE - ~AEBEHER
EHEE 2 E - BERA TR RKE
ABURA - BE AR EEEFISTHEE
BISRERRINMELEFTEREE

FEBMEAEEBRPEMRAEHR - R
BERBAREBRAFLEARAE - K8
R RAEGEERERKIEH - i
BREBHBERBERBINEAR
B MAREZESEEFHER
RE 2 BB 2 PSR BB ST A o

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
381,594 460,966
40,860 49,470
422,454 510,436
381,594 460,966
40,860 49,470
422,454 510,436
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Z

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HlA
2021 2020
—E--% C—E-EF
HK$’000 HK$"000
TR FET
Rental income HEWA 604 903
Government grants (Note) BURT G (B EE) 780 -
Others Hib 2,327 2,729
3,711 3,632
Note: BRE
Government subsidies of HK$730,000 were granted from the Retail Sector FEEEEBRITHRERAMANEESRHNTE
Subsidy Scheme and one-off subsidy for Transport Trades Subsidy under Anti- REYTFEREERERN [ —FBWHE ] S BNKRATH
Epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR. The B5730,000/8 T - AEBEER-FT=-—F=A=+t—H
Group has complied all attached conditions before 31 March 2021 and AFEMEMFRELEEFEWERFEINE -
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Remaining subsidies of HK$50,000 granted from The Government of Macau R T 1 & 50,0008 7T T3 BURPI 45 51 1T BB BT 9 B B 1
Special Administrative Region’s 10-Billion-Pataca Fund. The Group has REDESRE - AEEER-_Z=—-5=ZA=+—H
complied all attached conditions before 31 March 2021 and recognised in RRFEREMHRELEEFRERBERPERAR

the consolidated income statement.

7  OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

— Forward contracts (Note 25)

— Other exchange gain

Fair value gain/(loss) on investment
properties (Note 18)

Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

COVID-19-related rent concessions

1 38 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

7  Htz: (E8E) B8

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
ERWE(BR)  F58
— REEH (KisE25) 544 (1,491)
— HAbE & 162 2,159
REVMENDAARE
Wi (E58) (KMisE18) 700 (3,100)
HEFREEEER - (1,647)
HEVE BERZXEESRE
(3,847) (31)
2019 B mSHAREESER 6,028 -
3,587 (4,110)




SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

—  Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, investment
properties, cash and cash equivalents, property, plant and
equipment related to the office premises of the Group and
other corporate assets which are managed on central basis
and are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings, derivative
financial liabilities and other corporate liabilities which are
managed on central basis and are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment.

7 EEF

ARTRTES (HTES) BAREEE
EERRE - FEECRANTEFHS BA
BRAERERATEN 2 ANREEE T -

AEEZUERELDHOT ¢

— BEEIT FARBRHEMIB —E
A HBERTERERS  FEAREBR
Ht

- %E%‘Q{%&{%mﬁ% — %’Q%*t‘ N ED N ?tt
% TERREEERBREML

REBAREEBMBRELRESRBED
MEEAZEBR  ERBEBUBEREER
RRAGEVBEREGAEAZBER B -

HITESRBEFANETHEE D B
B ARYITESYFRERFNHMEE WS
KRAXER  HEMEERERAXTEIE

TR LK N2
BREDE o

DHEERERAEE  ETEETRE AR
e - BIEFGHEE REWE BER
REEEY  RAKENSFZRMEFENY
¥ BERRBURHMTEEE  ZZEE
WEFEE  AUFEEBEBEMEIMEED
ZEFEEE ©

THEERERERE  ETBEANRIEL
FREREE B AR EREMEE
BfE ZEREWETEE  BXFEERRS
RMEMEED B 2EREED -
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Z

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8 oHER @
2021
—E-—5F
Architectural
builders’
hardware,
bathroom Kitchen
collections collection
and others  and furniture Total
BERD
ERRE BHEZE
REAM RARM st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET THxT
Reportable segment revenue A ER 2 I E F 2 AR S
from external customers 322,280 100,174 422,454
Reportable segment cost of sales  TTE > 5 2B E KA (207,126) (56,743) (263,869)
Reportable segment gross profit A E Rz 2 HEF 115,154 43,431 158,585
Depreciation of property, plant M - BERREBITE
and equipment (6,162) 4,411) (10,573)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {F AEEERE (23,592) (13,949) (37,541)
Provision for inventory BEFERE
obsolescence (1,146) (4,090) (5,236)
Finance income B A 172 6 178
Finance costs MKEAR (1,192) (182) (1,374)
Net impairment losses on ERRENEEZRERE
financial and contract assets HEE (85) (54) (139)
Reportable segment assets AEHRZHBEE 300,221 84,781 385,002
Additions to non-current FERFERBIPEEZ
segment assets during the year nE 1,837 2,305 4,142
Reportable segment liabilities AERzsHEaE 99,752 73,917 173,669
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Reversal of provision for
inventory obsolescence

Finance income

Finance costs

Reportable segment assets
Additions to non-current segment

assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

AIER 2 o P o Bk R

AR 2 7 AR 5 & A A

R E ¥Rz 73 B EF

M BERRBITE

EREEENE

BEFERERE

R T ON
MBER

AERz D AEE
FERFRBIBEEZ
=T

AEHRz D HEE

8 IHER®@E

2020
—E-FF
Architectural
builders’
hardware,
bathroom Kitchen
collections collection
and others  and furniture Total
EEAE
FakE B ERE
N EH A Az AR HEH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
389,393 121,043 510,436
(217,274) (86,432) (303,706)
172,119 34,611 206,730
(2,972) (5,148) (8,120)
(21,395) (16,293) (37,688)
3,337 2,908 6,245
131 5 136
(889) (409) (1,298)
298,902 157,320 456,222
13,766 11,084 24,850
72,146 123,369 195,515
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8 SEER @

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit
Group gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents
Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

AERz D EHEF

£EER

WEH 7 HEE

M - BB RRE
EREEE
REME
EEFFSRERE
AW B A AT S B
RERREEEY
Hip b EE

KEEEE

TEHRzSHEE

B

REFREHER
TEERAs
EEFFEHEAE

Hipib B E

SEEE

FEBTEREE D BETEREREBER
BMBHME 2 T EVBREHROT

2021 2020
—E-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT
158,585 206,730
158,585 206,730
385,002 456,222
171,510 95,367

- 3,863

32,300 31,600
7,019 6,458
3,604 1,400
102,964 83,434
279 277
702,678 678,621
2021 2020
—E”-—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
173,669 195,515
44,834 3,450
2,325 4,642

851 807
19,276 19,560

- 3,943

491 527
241,446 228,444




8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8

Geographical information

DEBER @)
B E 250 E R

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets

Revenue from external and deferred income tax
customers assets)
FRBEE
(TEEETHEER

HIHNEF W& BERSHERE)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EC-F ZE-TF B ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FExT FHET FET
Hong Kong (domicile) EEB(FELHEMT) 409,579 491,928 340,507 272,775
PRC =2 12,875 18,508 2,825 6,070
Total =t 422,454 510,436 343,332 278,845

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined
based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no single customer
contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2020:
approximately HK$68,214,000 or approximately 13% of the
Group’s revenue was derived from a single external
customer).

EFHENERBRVERMEMEME ° 3F
RBEEZHEBUEARBEZEEZERLE
fzE °

BE-E-—F=-A=+—HLEE  BEE
—BEFHAERREBBI0%(ZE-FF :
AEBUREET 68,214,000/ 8 THA 13% KEE
—HHEF)

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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9

Z

EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 BHX2E

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) BETEAIZH (MFE11)

Government grants (Note 11) BT RS (M 11)

Auditors’ remuneration RER N =

— Audit services — RERHB

— Non-audit services — FREBRTE

Cost of inventories (Note 20) FEMRA (MEE20)

Depreciation of property, plant and M BERRBINE
equipment (Note 16) (BE16)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset (Note 17)  {EBEEENE (ME17)
Expenses relating to short-term lease (Note 17) 42 H3FA &R % (Ff3E17)

Direct operating expenses arising from EEHEWAZREXEE
investment properties that generated RER

rental income
Provision for/(reversal of provision for)
inventory obsolescence (Note 20)

BRFERE (BAERE)
(B&£20)

2021

B —fF
HK$’000
FTERT

64,506
(7,176)

1,700
195
235,633

16,269
37,541
1,283

108

5,236

2020
—E-TF
HK$’000
TBT

75,151

1,980
185
285,049

14,313
41,551
8,572

105

(6,245)

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs
Bank borrowings

Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 17)

Finance income
Bank interest income

Finance costs, net

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and allowances, including
directors’” emoluments

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Other long-term employee benefits

Government grants (Note)

Note:

Wage subsidies of approximately HK$7,176,000 were granted from the Hong
Kong SAR Government’s Employment Support Scheme under Anti-Epidemic
Fund for the use of paying wages of employees from June to November 2020.

10 BIHER F5

MBER
RITERK

HEEER S (ME17)

RS ON
RATRIE WA

MBER - B8

11 BIFAEZH

HEREN BEESHE

RAKERAR — REMRRETE

HttRMESEF
BURFHE G (B EE)

FEE -

2021 2020
= —F-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TET
1,374 1,298
2,950 4,597
4,324 5,895
(178) (136)
4,146 5,759
2021 2020
—E-— —ECERF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TEx TR
61,997 71,345
2,209 2,806
300 1,000
(7,176) -
57,330 75,151

REBESEBETHRERAHEREESHHNR
FE | HR T EINBUFHRLEK 7,176,00058 T 0 AR
NHEIZE-TF AZE+—AzHF2-
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(€))

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to

the directors of the Company are as follows:

2021

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

LUK Wang Kwong

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

BTES

HEE (EF)
HHE

HHE (ESAEE)
ki

BYFHITES
BE
RER

BERE

Z

12 EEZ2EARERRARRS N

Ax

(@)

Exz5M

ENRENRLTES SR NT ¢

—E—F
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
REEMNK
ESHe HEREA  HEREE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FTER TExT TET
100 2,318 18 2,436
100 3,541 - 3,641
100 3,010 18 3,128
100 2,288 18 2,406
100 1,566 18 1,684
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
824 12,723 72 13,619



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont’'d)

2020

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, /. P. (Note a)
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

LUK Wang Kwong (Note b)

Notes:

(a) Passed away on 31 August 2019

BITES

HEE (EF)
HHE

HHE (EEREE)
e

BYFUTES
Rrgcrss (Hizta)

(b) Appointed as director on 29 November 2019

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021

(2020: Nil).

12 EB2ENEERRIBERSHMH
N==¢ )
(@ EEZHM(E)
—EEF
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
RERMK
EEHE FeREA  HEEE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET TET FET
100 2,845 18 2,963
100 4,267 - 4,367
100 3,615 18 3,733
100 2,756 18 2,874
100 1,653 18 1,771
54 - - 54
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
28 - - 28
798 15,136 72 16,006
s

R-ZE—hENA=+— BBt
(b) RZZE-AF+—-B=-t+hBEZEHEE
=
B --F=ZA=+—HLEEE"

VEEEHRIREHERE2ME (=
TEFHE)

= —
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(b)

()

(d

(e)

0]

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2021, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 32, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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(c)

(d

(e)

®

FR - BEEEC RIS REUEMER
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 ESCEAREEREERSHMN
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D) P N==4¢ )

(®

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2020: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to

(® IEESFMAL
FRAKEzLEESHFHMALTEED
N(ZEZZF MY ES KEME
ENHEREXIRZHMA - FREX
HREXRHFEERSHFMA L ZEHB

the five highest paid individual during the year are as LU
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances 4 NEEL 12,926 15,840
Pension costs — defined contribution RBIKEHRA — REMRRGTE
plans 72 72
12,998 15,912
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e FUATEHE :

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
—_E-— —ECERF
MR BT
1,500,001 78 JT Z 2,000,000 & JT 1 -
2,000,001 78 7T E 2,500,000 78 7T 2 -
2,500,001 /& 7T & 3,000,000 /& 7T - 3
3,000,001 & 7T Z 3,500,000 & 7T 1 -
3,500,001 7 7T £ 4,000,000 78 7T 1

—_

4,000,001 /& Jt £ 4,500,000 /& 7T -

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group

is 25% (2020: 25%) for the year.

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax

— Current income tax

— Under provision in prior years
PRC enterprise income tax

— Current income tax

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 26)

Income tax expense

LR
HBRNEH

— ENHIFRS R
—EFEBRETR
BT H
— ENHIFRE R

EIEEES R
IEFER 1E (P =k 26)

FriSHiBA X

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

Profit before income tax

13

Z

FRr8HRX

EBFEB D UREEMFTERTERIRFTE
16.5% (ZFZFF : 16.5%) sTIREHE - R
FE  AEETEMBARNBEARESR25%
(ZZFZFF 1 25%) °

2021 2020
—g-—f —B-3F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
2,670 7,588

- 86

1 11

2,671 7,685
(845) (2,622)

1,826 5,063

REEBREBRBIEAERN 2 HERBRERAR
KEEERENERERMTE 2 BRE
ZEBRWT :

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable %48 E8 i & 5 7 & F #9 24 i

to profits in the respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year

Under provision in prior years

Tax effect of recognition of previously
unrecognised tax loss

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Unrecognised tax losses

Income tax expense

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

Group
rEH
2021 2020
—EZ—-F —EIERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THxT FHBT
R P15 8¢ A& Al 12,595 16,389
HEFTEMNHRIE 1,299 2,029
REERBRINEZE 97) (200)
AFFRTE - 86
BERATREIREBEZ
HESE (427) -
BERBBA (1,457) (22)
FAINBAX 443 708
BABEREIRIBESE
(10) (119)
RERBIEESE 2,075 2,581
FBBHAX 1,826 5,063




14 DIVIDENDS

(@)

(b)

14 KA

Dividends declared and paid during the year @

Final dividend in respect of 2020 of
HKO.5 cent (2020: in respect of 2019
of HK1.5 cents) per share

Interim dividend in respect of 2021 of
HKO.5 cent (2020: in respect of 2020
of HK1 cent) per share

Dividends for the year

Interim dividend of HKO.5 cent
(2020: HK1 cent) per share

Proposed final dividend of HKO0.5 cent
(2020: HKO.5 cent) per share (Note)

Note:

“ECEFRERESR
058 (ZF=FF :
—E-NFZRERK
1.5 7%84L)

BBk

—EC-FrHhHREESR
os,ﬁﬂh(—?— 4 !

EEZHHREER

_7_

17840)

(b)

EFHHH“ =R 0.5 784
“EIRF 1MW)

BORRE I EZAR 0.5 Bl
(ZEZZFF . 0.5%84)
(FfF&E)

Final dividends have been proposed by the directors after the reporting
date. The proposed dividends, subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, are not reflected as dividend

payables as at 31 March 2021.

RAEFEERRIKE 2B

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
3,003 9,009
3,003 6,006
6,006 15,015

FERS
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FiERT
3,003 6,006
3,003 3,003
6,006 9,009

BT

EENMEARERRBERBRE - ZEHIRKRE

(BEHERRNERERRBE RS LHLE) B RIR
ARZZE--—F=RA=1+-HZERRE -

MBITERAERAE =

B--FEH
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Z

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 BRER

(@)

(b)

Basic @
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by

the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to equity owners XA B A B FEAL S F
of the Company

Number of ordinary shares in issue ERITEBRRE(TR)
(thousands)

Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March

2021 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there

were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued

(2020: same).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

%N
BREFNZFNIRERNDAABEERME
BENBRAFENCBTEBRREGTE -

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET
10,769 11,326
600,600 600,600

0
MR ERERTEEREEER &8
EoE--FZAZt+-BLEELS
RIS R E AR (-2 =
25 AR ©



Net book value
At 31 March 2019
Change in accounting policy

Restated opening net book amount
Additions

Disposal

Depreciation (Note 9)

Revaluation

Exchange difference

At 31 March 2020
Additions

Disposal
Depreciation (Note 9)
Revaluation
Exchange difference

At 31 March 2021

At31 March 2020
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

At 31 March 2021
Valuation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REF
RZB-NE=R=1-H
S HEED

BB ENREFE
nE

HE

e (Frex o)

Eff

EREEZ

RZZ-ZF=A=1+-H
NE

HE

T (HiEE9)

B

EREE

RZE=Z-F=A=+—H

RZE-ZEF£=f=1+-H
f&E

B

e

REFE
RZBE--£=f=1+-H
f&E

B

ZEE

REFE

16 W% BERSE

Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(Note)  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELi
kgF HE  BH kB
(B=E) NEKE SET- nE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TEx FET TER TR
167,300 25,371 1,51 540 194,722
- (1,797) - - (1,797)
167,300 23,574 1,51 540 192,925
- 5,063 902 - 5,965
- (114) (26) - (140)
(5,850) (7,801) (444) (218) (14,313)
(9,150) - - - (9,150)
- (179) (48) 3) (230
152,300 20,543 1,895 319 175,057
78,161 5,690 592 - 84,443
- (3,336) G11) - (3,847)
(8,399) (7,338) (403) (129) (16,269)
6,338 - - - 6,338
- 125 43 1 169
228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891
152,300 - - - 152,300
- 80,444 20,565 1,224 102,233
- (59,901) (18,670) (905) (79,476)
152,300 20,543 1,895 319 175,057
228,400 - - - 228,400
- 80,379 20,525 1,236 102,140
- (64,695) (18,909) (1,045) (84,649)
228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891

BHTERERRAA-Z-Z-F5R
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

Note:

If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the
amounts would be as follows:

Cost AR
Accumulated depreciation 2itE
Net book amount BREFE

Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong
Kong with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$166,233,000 (2020:
approximately HK$94,200,000) (Note 24).

The following table analyses the leasehold land and buildings
carried at fair value, by valuation method.

Description
BR
As at 31 March 2021 R—E-_—F=A=+—H

Recurring fair value measurements &EM QA REFE

— Leasehold land and buildings —f&+ihRiEF

As at 31 March 2020 R-E-_FEF=A=+—H

Recurring fair value measurements &E N R{EFE
— Leasehold land and buildings ~— &+ #REF

Note:

For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are
not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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16 M% - BERSE@
MI&E
HAELHREFDREERAEEZS  FESEN
T
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
112,965 34,804
(10,041) (7,782)
102,924 27,022
RATAERALIREER 166,233,000 8T (ZFE=FF :
#994,200,00038 7T) 2 BB E + 1th A FAEHLIR (BT
24)
TRUGEZED TR AABIIRZEE L BR
BF o
Fair value measurements using
RATISEZAAEFNE
Quoted
prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
HEEER EXRHM E P Ng |
TEEBT S BE BEERARE
ZBE LD ¢ (B=FE)
(5—FE) (5=F8) (B &E)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FiERT FiExT
- - 228,400
— — 152,300
s

REZBETZARBHEMNS  EEREBEZBAY
B REE T SIS (BT A BER AR AER -



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were

no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FAE
Addition wE
Depreciation e

Gain/(loss) on revaluation recognised RE b2 HE W ERZ

in other comprehensive income Bk (E18)
Closing balance FRERR

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2021 by an independent and qualified valuer, Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the leasehold land and buildings
valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the
properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market
unit rate.

W - BERSE @)

AEEzHERAREREBAAEER2BE
BeEMHAEREBDER  BRERARERE
ReBAREH -FR - F-BRS
ZEBZEAEER o

AREATTRERARE (X=H) 2 A
iE

Leasehold land and buildings

HELhRETF
2021 2020
—_E-— —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT TET
152,300 167,300
78,161 -
(8,399) (5,850)
6,338 (9,150)
228,400 152,300

AEBEZEER

FEBZHELBREFHB LA ERMELD
ERENFMITERAIR-ZE=—F=A
=t+—HAEE LEEMSERERTEXE
¥ BRFASHEET HREFHEHERS
BPEITIEE °

FEBEVENEE -ZHMBIRE B NEMNB
MEEMPFETAEZER - ZEREEEE
EEER - HEBBSFREAEMNREER
RRER -

HELTHREFZE=ZBANEBENEAEEL
BURGH - EELBUZ—RFABAEBEDTS L7
EHZAELBHEERZEBWEQE - B
TEAELENECEEERXRZRKE -9
EHERGHETRRER CERFEHBER - It
HEEZRERBABBATSEER -

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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Z

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cONTD) 16 Y% - BERRE @

Information about fair value measurements using significant FBEFAERTTEERGARE (F=B) 22

unobservable inputs (Level 3) REFEZER
Relationship of unobservable inputs

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs of fair value

LR 3 PN ¢ THBERARBEE DMRERSRFTEEREA
HiE 2 BE

Market unit rate Office: HK$19,400 to HK$19,600 (2020:  The higher the market unit rate, the

MISEER HK$19,000 to HK$19,200) per square feet higher the fair value

of saleable area TSEERME  AREYS

WBAE  BERAEESFAHRI19,4008ITE 19,600
BIT(ZEEZFF 1 19,00087TE 19,2008 7T)

Shop: HK$77,800 (2020: HK$75,500) per
square feet of saleable area

i BRAEBESFAR77,808BT(Z2 2R
& 1 75,500%87T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the FERNEGET EMESE o
year.
17 LEASES 17 #HE&
This note provides information for leases where the Group is A ERHARBEERFAEAZEEES -
a lessee.
(@ Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of @ REEMBRREABRIZEE
financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows FEMBMRRRITUTHEERTEZ
the following balances relating to the leases: R
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties LES 65,141 72,188
Lease liabilities HESE
Current RED 28,477 33,617
Non-current ERE 41,920 43,929
70,397 77,546
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended BE-ZE-_-F=ZA=+—-BLFE
31 March 2021 amounted to approximately NEERREEN30,284,000 8T (=8
HK$30,284,000 (2020: approximately HK$19,505,000). —ZF 419,505,000 7T) °

1 56 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



17 LEASES (coNT'D)

(b)

(c)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

17 #HE @)

(b)

RESEHBBERABIE ZEHE

FEZEWERIIRUTREEEAEZ
B

2021 2020
—B-—F - i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FTET

Depreciation charge of right-of-use EREEE 2T ER X (MEE9)
assets (Note 9) 37,541 41,551

Expenses relating to short-term leases BREHMEE 2R (HEE9)

(Note 9) 1,283 8,572
Interest expense (Note 10) MER (£ 10) 2,950 4,597

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31
March 2021 amounted to approximately HK$34,448,000
(2020: approximately HK$43,872,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties including retail
shops and warehouse. The lease terms are between one
to four years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor.

(9]

BE-ZE--F=ZA=+—HLEEE"
HECZHEBRES RN A 34,448,000/ T
(ZZBEZZHF : £943,872,000587T) °

FEEHEEBREARASR

AEBERAZENE ETEEZTER
HRER - HENF—ZEWF -

HERENELEER  YBSEERE
ZARFR B AR o AEE 1 i AR A e A0 AE A
it HEREBBAAFEZHEEET 2
AR ©

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REYWZF

2021 2020
—E-F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TER
At T April RWUA—AH 31,600 34,700

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in ERBEEADR
the profit or loss Wz (EE) 700 (3,100)
At 31 March HN=A=+—H 32,300 31,600

BREMENARBEWE (BE) DEtAGREE
EWRERANTHMbWE(EE)  FEE] (K
7)) e

The fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties is included
in “Other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 7).

157
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D) 18

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

Z

REYE @)

EREAEAT THRB ARENAAET B
HER

Fair value measurements using

RATSSEZAAETE

Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEER EARHAM BEX
TERT S CIEE2 G2
ZRME WABE WARE
Description B (5—F) (8=f8) (B=FE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FER FET
As at 31 March 2021 R=-B-_—-%=H=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &£& 4D R EFE
— Investment properties —REYE - - 32,300
As at 31 March 2020 N-B-ZHFE=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &HEM A RETE
— Investment properties — REYE - - 31,600

As at 31 March 2021, valuations were undertaken by an
independent and qualified valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited. The valuation processes are the same as the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own use
(Note 16).

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs

FUEERARE FaBRRARBEHE

Market unit rate HK$19,600 (2020:HK$19,200) per square
MiGEER feet of saleable area

EFREBEEFFR19,6008 T
(ZEZZF 1 19,20087T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques used
during the year.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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ZEMGHEE (HEE16) ©

FRRNREATABEGARE (=) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable inputs
of fair value
DAERSRATEER
BABEZBRE

The higher the market unit rate, the
higher the fair value
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19

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2021:

Name of subsidiary

HEAFAM

Accord Sky Limited

Accord Sky Limited

Asia Bon Company Limited
ER(TH) REERERAT

Asia Richly Limited
DHEEARAR

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
RETESENERLE
Cypress Design Limited
MERTERAT

D.LY. Limited

D.LY. Limited

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited

BATREMHARAT
H20 (Pro) Limited
KZRERLT

Joint Oriental Limited
Joint Oriental Limited
Kitchen (Pro) Limited
BZRERAT

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

B (B#)ARAE

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

ZE (LB R2AERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

/R

Hong Kong

&2

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
£

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&E
Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
5
PRC

T

Particulars of
issued share
capital

BRITRAHE

1,000,000 ordinary shares

1,000,000 REER

100 ordinary shares
100 REBR

1 ordinary share
1REER

10,000 ordinary shares
10000 REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
VREER

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 REER

2 ordinary shares
REBR

1 ordinary share
1REER

1,000 ordinary shares
1000 REER

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 REER

US$$250,000

250,000 %7

Legal structure

EEER

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities

BRERLT

Company with limited liabilities

BRERLT

Company with limited liabilities

i

BRERLT

all

¢

Company with limited liabilities

i

BREEAF

all

f

Company with limited liabilities

BRERLT

all

Company with limited liabilities

AREEAT
Company with limited liabilities
BREELT
Company with limited liabilities
BRERAT
Company with limited liabilities

BREMAT

all

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

EHELE

19 KMEBATER

UTBR=F=
AFREE:

Equity interest held

R B
2021 2020
—g=-F -FI%F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

—FZA=+—HZ2EEWE

Principal activities and
place of operation

IREBRERDE

Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in Hong
Kong

ERTEENEETEHERRREREM

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBENEEE

Property holding in Hong Kong
RERENEEE

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware in Hong Kong

REBENRHEERZDS

Consulting services for interior design and
fitting out works

ERRET REE IR ZEARS

Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group

REASEANERAINRRZE

Importing and sale of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections in
Hong Kong

REBENRHERERERAAR

Importing and sale of hathroom collections
in Hong Kong
REBENRHEEGAR

Handling of human resources planning and
development activities of the Group

REASBANERRIRERSE

Importing, sale and installation of kitchen
collections in Hong Kong

REBED  HERZEBRERE

Supply of architectural builders” hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in Hong Kong

REEHERERSREARETNRLR
EH

Supplying architectural builders” hardware
and bathroom collections for property
development in the PRC

ROEHEREREREARBTIRER
EH

BHTERERRAA-Z-Z-F5R
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19 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (coNT'D) 19 MR RS @
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued share Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment  capital Legal structure Equity interest held place of operation
WELARER HR/ RIS BRIRARE EEAR iS4 IREBREENY
2021 2020
—§--§ CECEF
Oriental Forward Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
RAKERRAT Bt 1REER AREELT RERENERE
Oriental Longway Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong
RAREBRAT 3 1REER BREELT REBENERE
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares  Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail shops
in Hong Kong
BIARAF £ 1000 REBR ARERAF ERTEENEBTEHERARBRELS
T
Shanghai Tech Pro International - PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
Trading Company Limited* hardware and bathroom collections in
the PRC
LESREBEZERAT  HE 300,000 ERELR RAEEORHERZREREARE
Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC RMBS5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100%. 100%  Undertaking interior decoration and project
Decoration Company management for property development
Limited* in the PRC
LEEREARHERLT  HE ABRH 5,000,000 78 POELE RAERMERR:RER ERRE TN
B
Sunny Building and Decoration - Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of architectural builders
Materials Company Limited hardware and bathroom collections
through retail shops in Hong Kong
FHEHIHAESTE i 6,000 REER BREELH ERTEENEETEHERENERER
ARLR B
Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural builders
hardware
RRENESERLA BE 1,000 REER AREEAT Enk#ERELS
VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned enterprise 100% 100%  Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture
and kitchen collections in the PRC
2R (LB ZAFHEARAT FE 250,000 %7 2ang RPERENREEEE - BAREERE
* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent * HREMETFHBARNLBBCTREER  MZ
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these ERVERHEEBRBETXERSLEZF -

subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.
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20

INVENTORIES

Finished goods B

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK$235,633,000
(2020: approximately HK$285,049,000).

As at 31 March 2021, finished goods with cost of
approximately HK$32,436,000 (2020: approximately
HK$26,916,000) were considered as obsolete.

The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is
as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year FAEER

Provision for inventory obsolescence BRETFERME

Reversal of provision for inventory BEFERAERD
obsolescence

Exchange difference ErRE=R

Balance at end of the year FRER

20 FE

2021 2020
= —F-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx TiBx
142,451 144,870

BRI ATATHERS ] 2FEREL

#235,633,0008 T( = & = &
285,049,000 78 7T) °

F: 8

RZEZ—F=A=+—0 BREREZK
R E32,436008BT(ZEZFF: 4

26,916,000 JT) °

BEFEREZBHNOT :

2021 2020
—_E-— —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT TET
26,916 33,326
6,108 -
(872) (6,245)

284 (165)
32,436 26,916

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21

CONTRACT ASSETS

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract

Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

REEHNEE

PR BRAR - BURE X - HibEUW

REBZ-F=ZRB=+-RHAZBRENX - BY

assets as at 31 March 2021 are listed below: REM - HLEWRRENEEERWT ¢
2021 2020
— —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FiExT
Trade receivables FEUR BR X 78,356 138,986
Less: provision for impairment of trade o EWARFURE R R
receivables (720) (626)
77,636 138,360
Retention receivables FEWR B = 1,161 3,478
Less: provision for impairment of retention B RWRE R E R
receivables (285) (252)
78,512 141,586
Contract assets BREE 4,364 3,629
Less: provision for impairment of contract B ENEERERE
assets (39) -
82,837 145,215
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAbFEWER  #H & R B 20,471 18,399
103,308 163,614
Less: non-current portion W FEENERE
Retention receivables FE AR BB 3K (150) (779)
Deposits and prepayments BERENR (5,724) (5,384)
Current portion ENHAER & 97,434 157,451

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the

FrA SRRV 2 2 B N B |E B ERE

end of the respective reporting dates. STRFREIE -

162
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21 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days 1290K
91-365 days 91 £365K
Over 365 days #8365 K

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a life time
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention receivables
and contract assets. Information about the impairment of
these receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is
set out in Note 3.1(c).

The movement in the provision of impairment for doubtful
debts is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year F AR
Loss allowance for the year FREERE
Exchange difference ERE=R
Balance at end of the year FRER

As at 31 March 2021, provision of impairment for doubtful
debt of HK$1,044,000 (2020: HK$878,000) is recognised in
respect of customers that were in delinquency of payments, in
which the directors are of the opinion that whole outstanding
amount is expected not to be recovered.

R - ERARER - HiEW
REREHEE @)

FEWBR AR E B 2 Rl (A HFTE) 2047
LU

2021 2020
—_E-— —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT TET
47,448 75,183
17,965 50,627
12,943 13,176
78,356 138,986

FEBMHEFENABOR30E0X M
BABRFHNEEMITEERESRZ 120K -

AEEERASBUMBREZENFEIFEEST
EEBEEBE  HAERBIRRRERRE
MUREHNEEFAZBFERESBRE - B
ZERWZEBERERSTEBEERBRNERS
RHEE3.1() °

REFEREEBHOT
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FiERT
878 899
139 -
27 1)
1,044 878

RZZE-_-F=A=+—8 HREFHEBXER
MERNRIRBERES1,044,0008T (==
—EF 1 878,000/87T)  ERFEZERKIR
BASEEBERE o

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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21

22

Z

TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 RN  BURARE R - HEWK
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTD) RRENEE®
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying values of trade and other RZZZ-F=A=+—-0  BERRKREM
receivables approximate their fair values (2020: same). Rz EAEEEARERE (ZE=2F
HEE) °
Details of contract assets are as follows: BREEFBUT :
2021 2020
—g-—F —BEF
HK$’000 HK$"000
TR FET
Contract assets related to contract work BHEANIRENANEE 4,364 3,629
Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from BHREEERCEANERBOTFBHRE
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount MERRENITREREENRBRESHE -
billed to the customer.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 ReRREEEY
2021 2020
e —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITEFRRFEARE 102,964 83,434

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$3,152,000 (2020: approximately
HK$4,429,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
0.17% (2020: 0.16%) per annum as at 31 March 2021.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

R-ZBE-Z—F=A=+—H0  A5EzHER
IRITHERL3,152,0008B T(ZEFF : §
4,429,000 7T) EFARE 2 RIT 0 BERZ I
EMRBIE S o

R-ZEZ-FE=A=+-—0 EHRTERZ
BERFERNEE0.17% (ZEZFF 1 0.16%) °



23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Accrued charges and other payables
Contract liabilities

Other provision

Less: non-current portion
Other provision

Current portion

FEASBRIR
FERTE AR AR
BHNEE
Hitb B

B, 1 FEENHEIER
Hiu

EEE D

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date

by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days
91-365 days
Over 365 days

EXNPS
91 E365 K
HBiE 365K

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2020: same).

23 ENRIRAEGENRRENEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FExT
25,115 22,815
10,860 11,729
42,248 77,189
3,800 3,500
82,023 115,233
(3,800) (3,500)
78,223 111,733

FESRRFAIRE B 2 BRilk (ABRRAFE) 247

mT
2021 2020
—E-— —ECERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT TERT
19,612 19,665
2,744 2,567
2,759 583
25,115 22,815

RZBZ-F=ZA=+—-HB  ENERIRAM

FEI R BREESRE D R EE

HE) e

H(=E=FF:

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 23

24

LIABILITIES (cONT'D)

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied
performance obligations

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for

unsatisfied performance obligations.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to

carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included
in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year

BORROWINGS

Current
Secured
— Bank loans

Unsecured
— Trust receipt loans
— Bank loans

SRS

B A
B

— RITER

BRI
— ST RIBE R

— RITEXK

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or EUR.

All bank loans are denominated in HKS.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

ABHEFTEHNEE

24

B % R kB o

Z

EARAREMCENRERENAE
(&)

BHEEHENT
2021 2020
:g:_¢ — 7 — E
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRT TEx
42,248 77,189

BHEBERREMRARBENEREREFRRE (R
IBRESHE) -

TRETHAESHABEBRNABREHETE

FFAFHENABEERN

USSR
2021 2020
—E”—F —E2-FHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FETT
11,721 54,011

=B

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
44,834 1,647
21,740 7,206
- 1,803
66,574 10,656

ERERBERCEEERTERBTHEE -
FBHRITERZEEEEREBT -



24 BORROWINGS (coNT'D)

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as

follows:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth year
Over fifth year

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$44,834,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,647,000) are secured by leasehold land
and buildings of the Group of approximately
HK$166,233,000 (2020: approximately HK$94,200,000)

(Note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating

rates, equals their carrying amounts.

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year

The effective interest rate is 3.6% per annum (2020: 3.9% per
annum) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities for the years ended 31 March 2021 and

2020.

24 fBFRG

&)

RZZBZ—F=ZA=+—RH FAEEEHEEEZ

BRAOT
2021 2020
S _qE — 7 — ﬂi
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FTERT
—FR 25,607 5,479
EF-FRA 3,712 4,939
E=FZERLFR 7,673 238
BRERF 29,582 -
66,574 10,656
IRITIE A 44,834,000 8B T(ZEFF 1

1,647,000 T ) R AKX EE B EHD
166,233,000/ T (ZE=FF .
B 2B L REFEIRF (HEE16) o

#94,200,000

MESBHREZERTAAESEALRRRE -
AEBEUTRBACBELE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E2-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
TR :
— —FREH 174,037 214,297
BE-E--—F-HA=+-HLEEZERE

FZEB3.6% (ZFEZFF 13.9%) °

REZEZ

LLFE - AEECE #Eﬁféﬁﬁzﬁﬁ%} E‘

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 {THE€®mI A
2021 2020
= —E-FF
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE =L BE afE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET FET
Not qualified for hedge TREHTETER
accounting
Foreign exchange forward HNEEMEL
contract, at market value LA (M)
(Note) - 851) - (807)
Note: BiEE
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward REB--FR-ZBOZEFZA=T-RAERTRZN
contracts as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as follows: BERAANCRELRASSENT :
2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Sell HKD for EUR BEHBREE 27,371 34,022
26 DEFERRED TAXATION 26 EEFTBH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTEHREE 7,019 6,458
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFIEHRERE (19,276) (19,560)
(12,257) (13,102)
1 68 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021




26 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D) 26 EIEFTEH (&
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and AEZBHMBRBHE FEEENIK HAERA -
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration FEEZELERSHEEREBRREH N
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets BEFFSHEE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
HEESR HERERE BB @t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
:g:—ﬂi —?—?E :g:_¢ —?—vﬁ :g:_i —?—?E :§:_¢ —?—vﬁ
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR FTER TR TER TR
At 1 April REUA—A 4,167 2,299 7,189 5,783 536 1,172 11,892 9,254
Credited/(charged) to FA/(HB)ER
profit or loss 44 1,868 1,645 1,406 220 (594) 1,909 2,680
Exchange difference EREER - - - - 49 (42) 49 (42)
At 31 March W=B=+-B 4,211 4,167 8,834 7,189 805 536 13,850 11,892
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFSHEE
Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total
MEEMR MEBERE st
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
:g:_$ —?—7E :g:_ﬁ —?—7E :g:_$ —7—7$
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET THT TR THT TR
At 1 April WEA—H 24,621 26,130 373 315 24,994 26,445
Charged/(credited) to (FtA)/MaHt2EkE
other comprehensive
income 1,046 (1,509) - - 1,046 (1,509)
Charged to profitor loss 1 B 8% - - 67 58 67 58
At 31 March R=A=+—H 25,667 24,621 440 373 26,107 24,994

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R
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26 DEFERRED TAXATION (cONT'D) 26

27

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$26,671,000 (2020: approximately
HK$19,707,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These
tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:

In the first to fifth year inclusive F-—FEFEHFA
(BEERRMF)
No expiry date WHEEHI B

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$563,000
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately HK$872,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately
HK$11,273,000 at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$17,441,000), and the Group does not intend to remit
these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

SHARE CAPITAL 27 B
2021 2020
—B--F b S %3
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
RAEE TET k] TER
Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREE0IBTZEER
At 1 April and 31 March REA-BR=A=t-H 1,000,000,000 100,000  1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EECNES ST
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each SREEBIBIzEBR
At 1 April and 31 March REA-BR=A=+—-H 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

Z

EEFTER (@)

R-ZB-—F=A=+—H0 xEENERER
BRERTHIEEELN26671,0008T (==
T 1 4919,707,000/87) ZIELEFTEHREE -
LIHRERBRE R AEERNEBEEREM
= R KA BEENS FER = A LUK S5 7 8
B - ZEREFBEZIHANT

2021 2020
—B=—%F — S

HK$/000 HK$'000

FERT FTERT

26,671 17,980

- 1,727

26,671 19,707
R-E-—£=A=+-0 LEHRHELT

RE BRI B 2 FE0HE R H At B IE rE R IE 1 P
BHREBHN563,00BT(ZBEFF:
872,00087T) - R=—ZE=-_—F=A=+—H"
KEBANAEHENE11,273,008T(ZE=F
F 817,441,000 ) RAEBIEITER
A RS REARABHENB AR 2 RERF -



28 RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
100 and 101.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.

28

E3i]

FEEZREZBHHFENEI0RI01EZ
REEREBR -

EEE

BHBREAERAREAS  AQEETHEBELH
AN B ZEERBEHR  SEABRHERER
MeBERETEDL - REBABERERM2E
TRE  BEERETEBTRMBARESE
ZEABERAESBERFERL

SO

AEEZAGHRBRSER EEERER =
EESF=A-+-AEESME(EE)Y
MEEREADNEEZROREEZZE )
EERERERRZAATDRTRG 2 HE -

B
EXRBER-ZEEF-A-+-REEE
ARIERRREAARAETHEARZHER

i/\ °
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29 REREEHR
(@ Cash flows from operating activities (a RETHELECZHESRE
2021 2020
—Eg-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT
Profit before income tax RS BLADE A 12,595 16,389
Adjustments for: KT IR IEAE
Finance costs B & M 4,324 5,895
Finance income b T ON (178) (136)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment REMFLNE
properties (K#),E#E (700) 3,100
Provision for/(reversal of provision for)  BEFEEE (BERD)
inventory obsolescence 5,236 (6,245)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand &Y% - BERREEE
equipment 3,847 31
Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAEEERE - 1,647
Net impairment losses on financial ERMRANEEZRE
and contract assets BEFE 139 -
(Gain)/loss on forward contracts mEEH (KR, EiE (544) 1,491
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZETE
equipment 16,269 14,313
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 37,541 41,551
COVID-19-related rent concessions 2019 Bk EmAEREES
BR (6,028) -
Operating profit before working capital &E& &2 2 L& HF
changes 72,501 78,036
Inventories FE (2,433) 30,537
Trade, retention and other receivables  FEUBER - EWREBR R
H At FE UK 62,100 (21,928)
Contract assets BHREE (570) (85)
Trade and other payables and provision FE{ERFK B R 345 721 549
Contract liabilities BREE (35,072) 23,071
Cash generated from operations REEL RS 97,247 110,180
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29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONT'D) 29 BEREBER @)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEWHE - BERRBZAETE
equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

RESBRERBRA HEWX  HE
KRBz ERERSE

comprise:
2021 2020
—2--F i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
Net book amount (Note 16) BRMEFE (FIEE 16) 3,847 140
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEKR
plant and equipment (Note 7) HEEE (MEE7) (3,847) 31)
Proceeds from disposal of property, — HE¥*% - BMERREMEHE
plant and equipment - 109
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial (0 BEIBDEENAEYHIER
activities

Liabilities from financing activities

MEERHzEE
Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total

EEN HEaE #at

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET FExT

At 31 March 2019 R-B—-hE=ZA=+—H 36,587 - 36,587

Adoption of HKFRS 16 KRB BUBEARS

165 - 117,983 117,983

At 1 April 2019 R=—B—hEWMA—H 36,587 117,983 154,570
Cash flows BHeRhE (25,931) (39,275) (65,206)
Non-cash movement FBEEHRE - (1,162) (1,162)
At 31 March 2020 N-ZB-_FEF=A=+—H 10,656 77,546 88,202
Cash flows BeRhE 8,868 (31,498) (22,630)
Non-cash movement FEERE 47,050 24,349 71,399
At 31 March 2021 R-—B-——%=g=+-¢H 66,574 70,397 136,971

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R



174

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

31

Operating lease commitments — group company as lessor
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of investment properties as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERFR
(BREEREMSF)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, performance bonds of approximately
HK$37,595,000 (2020: approximately HK$31,735,000) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.
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31

Z

REHERE

KEREARE —SEATESEAA
R-EBE-—F=A=1+—0  xEERETY
B2 REMELEREMR R RERRKERE
EREMABENT ¢

2021 2020
—F=—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx
780 390
325 -
1,105 390
RREE

R-ZBZ—-H=ZfF=1+—8 ' A&EEEQREF
B HBAREL37,595,0008 T (ZE=FF ¢
#931,735,000BTT) 1EBEHIER -



32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BBEAEXRS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed BRESUBREAKREZRS,ERI  RA
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during FER AREZEBEATETUTRS
the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:
(@ Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2021 2020
REATBE XHHHE e e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FiExT
A company under common Lease payments paid to Negotiator
control of certain directors Consultants Limited ( “NCL”)
of the Company (Note) 3 14 F Negotiator Consultants Limited
—BEARRABETESHE (TNCLD) 2 HE R
ta AN D) 3,826 4,032
Note: FsE -
NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, NCLAARBESHIELEE  HMELE  HHEL
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of ERFEREIEBREEEEE AT HENRERE
the Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid in EBBRPRAKREENCLERBE ZHAZM -
the normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the
Group and NCL.
(b) Balances with related parties by BBEALZEE

Other receivables from H bR FR A
__NCL — NCL

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values (2020: same).

2021 2020
—B-—F —
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT T

265 267

EHREER  RERABEREN -
BEEEAAAERE (CR-BF : 4
A) -
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33 AQATHMBURRERRBEEES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mg FTHET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries ML B = 90,918 90,918
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B A B FRIE 33,999 19,317
Other receivables H{th FEU R 30 30
Current income tax recoverable ] Y B A 2R B 15 %4 - 180
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RESZEY 1,196 1,246
35,225 20,773
Total assets HEE 126,143 111,691
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to equity holders Z<2 5 fr 5 & FE{L 2
of the Company
Share capital BRAN 60,060 60,060
Reserves #H1E (a) 64,101 49,483
Total equity masw 124161109543
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables Ht A=K 1,895 2,148
Current income tax liabilities REFTEREE 87 -
1,982 2,148
Total equity and liabilities mERREE 126,143 111,691
The statement of financial position of the Company was AATMERREDEESEN T —FX
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021 and A-+thE#E AR THESRKRES -
were signed on its behalf.
TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
i T E
Director Director
2 2
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Note:

(@

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 April 2019
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 14(a))

At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2020
Profit for the year
Dividends (Note 14(a))

At 31 March 2021

BEE -

(@)

R=B—NEMA—A
B
B8 (R 14()

R-B-EF=A=t+—H
R-ZF-ZFFMA—A
FEEF

RE (M 14(@))

R=®=—£=A=+-H

33 AARMBERRRRBESE @

AATHEED
Retained
earnings Total
R F et
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FExT
64,305 64,305
193 193
(15,015) (15,015)
49,483 49,483
49,483 49,483
20,624 20,624
(6,006) (6,006)
64,101 64,101

BHTERERATI-S-_—55R

177
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five
years ended 31 March 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 have

ES
RAREE
FE1L &R

BEREE
RMEE
meE

been prepared on a consolidated basis.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

LFUBRE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=BS-F ZESTF O SEONF ZFONF ZF-iF
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET T TR T T
10,769 11,326 15,085 44,194 42,307
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=F--F ZBSERF O ZEAF ZE-N\F ZF-iF
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TER TET FET TR
702,678 678,621 620,317 656,011 582,865
(241,446)  (228,444) (157,441)  (176,800) (151,001)
461,232 450,177 462,876 479,211 431,864

FEEEE=_T—tF - =T \FE - ZZT—-LF-
CECEER-_E--FZA=t+—HLAREEE
BEZEE LEERABBENRGEEEERH
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